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More than four decades have flown by since JOYCE

first opened its doors in Hong Kong - in terms of fashion and
decorative currents, a decidedly different city than in the early 1970s.
We are proud of the unique contribution which JOYCE has made

to the development of local and regional sensibilities and our

role in shaping one of the world's leading retail capitals. With the
support of our shareholders, employees and partners, we remain
committed to building on these accomplishments.
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JOYCE

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

OVERVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Group revenue for the year declined by 9.8% to HK$860.7 million (2016/17: HK$954 .4 million), compared with a 19.1%
decrease in the previous year. The fall in revenue was partly due to the closure of shops.

Two consecutive years of negative growth in Hong Kong's retail sector extended into the first half of the financial year.
A 19.4% drop in first-half revenue narrowed to a 9.8% decline for the full financial year. Despite a reduction in operating
costs, profitability suffered as a result of continued weakness in sales and margin.

Gross margin declined by 1.0 percentage point, following an improvement in the previous year, mainly due to a higher
proportion of revenue contributed by the liquidation of aged stock.

Net loss attributable to owners of the Company totalled HK$54.7 million for the year, compared with a loss of HK$41.9
million in the previous year. Loss per share was 3.4 HK cents (2016/17: 2.6 HK cents).

The Hong Kong division's operating loss for the year widened to HK$50.7 million versus HK$31.8 million in the previous
year, reflecting a 6.5% fall in division revenue.

The Mainland China division's operating loss narrowed to HK$2.4 million from HK$3.7 million in the previous year,
subsequent to the closure of underperforming shops.

While the business outlook remains somewhat uncertain, the Group targets to reduce its operating losses. Despite a
gradual recovery in the retail sector and growth in sales driven by a recent rise in inbound tourism, Hong Kong as a
luxury-shopping destination still faces stiff and growing competition from other Asian markets, and sustaining the current
rebound will be challenging. Moreover, rental levels in prime shopping locations remain high relative to revenue, and the
online shopping trend continues to adversely impact local bricks-and-mortar retail operations.

Going forward, the Group remains focused on restoring growth in comparable-store sales, driving store traffic and gaining
new customers, through enhanced product offerings, and innovative in-store events and marketing. Customer loyalty
and acquisition programmes and professional personal-stylist services are being enhanced to strengthen customer
engagement and increase customer visits and spending levels.

BUSINESS REVIEW

At the financial year-end, the Group operated a total of 39 shops (2017: 39). This portfolio comprised 25 shops in Hong
Kong (including 3 multi-label JOYCE stores, one JOYCE pop-up corner in Lane Crawford IFC store, 8 mono-brand shops,
12 JOYCE Beauty shops and one JOYCE Warehouse outlet), and 6 shops in Mainland China (including 2 multi-label JOYCE
stores, 2 JOYCE Beauty shops and 2 JOYCE Warehouse outlets). In addition, the Group operated 8 Marni shops in Hong
Kong and Taiwan under its 49%-held joint venture partnership with Marni Group S.r.L.

In view of the difficult trading environment, the Group continues to adopt a very selective approach to expansion. The
Group opened a JOYCE Beauty shop in the Yuen Long Yoho Mall in Hong Kong in July 2017, and 2 JOYCE Beauty
concession corners in Lane Crawford stores in Shanghai and Chengdu in December 2017. During the year, the Group
closed 3 non-performing shops in order to improve shop productivity.

Dividend
In view of this year's results and an uncertain outlook for the coming financial year, the Board has resolved not to declare
a dividend for this financial year (2016/17: Nil).

The various challenges that face the luxury fashion retailing industry generally and the company specifically should not
be under-estimated. Substantial pressure on trading performance would not easily cease. The Board remains grateful to
the entire JOYCE team and to all Group stakeholders for their ongoing support.

Stephen T. H. Ng
Chairman

Hong Kong. 15 June 2018
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JOYCE

OTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION

Set out below is information disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the "Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange™:

(A) MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review
An analysis of the Group's business for the year under review is given in the Chairman'’s Statement under
the section headed "Business Review".

Financial Review

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Review of 2017/18 Results

The Group recorded a net loss attributable to owners of the Company of HK$54.7 million for the year
ended 31 March 2018, compared with a net loss of HK$41.9 million for the previous year. Loss per
share was 3.4 HK cents (2016/17: 2.6 HK cents).

Group revenue declined by 9.8% to HK$860.7 million (2016/17: HK$954.4 million). A 1.0 percentage
point decrease in gross margin was mainly due to a higher proportion of revenue contributed by
liquidation of aged stocks.

Hong Kong division's revenue dropped by 6.5% against the previous year and accounted for 88.7%
of Group revenue (2016/17: 85.6%). As a result, the operating loss of Hong Kong division widened by
HK$18.9 million to HK$50.7 million for the period (2016/17: HK$31.8 million).

Mainland China division's revenue recorded a drop of 30.4% against the same period last year, partly
due to a general decline in sales performance and partly due to closures of shops. Gross margin also
declined by 4.6 percentage points due to the relatively higher proportion of revenue contributed by
liquidation of aged stocks. The Mainland China division's operating loss contracted by HK$1.3 million
to HK$2.4 million, chiefly due to the closure of underperforming shops and savings in operating costs.
This year's operating loss included a HK$5.8 million (2016/17: HK$6.2 million) reversal of the onerous
contract provision made for the JOYCE shop at Shanghai IAPM after reaching an out-of-court
settlement with the mall's landlord.

For the year under review, the 49%-held joint venture with Marni S.r.l. posted a profit contribution
of HK$3.1 million (2016/17: loss of HK$1.5 million) resulting from improvement of gross margin and
operating efficiency.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
At 31 March 2018, the Group's financial position remained liquid with total cash deposits and cash on
hand amounting to HK$340.8 million. No bank borrowings were outstanding at 31 March 2018,

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Most of the Group's imported purchases are denominated in foreign currencies, primarily in euros. To
minimise exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations, the Group from time to time reviews its foreign
exchange position and, if appropriate and necessary, hedges its exposure by means of forward
contracts.

Finance
At 31 March 2018, the Group had banking facilities totalling HK$254.8 million (2017: HK$254.8 million).

Employees

The Group employed 399 staff as at 31 March 2018. Employees are remunerated according to the
nature of their positions and market trends, with merit components incorporated in annual salary
increments to reward and motivate individual performance. The Group provides appropriate various
job-related training programs to staff. Total staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to
HK$158.5 million.
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OTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION

(vi)  Business Model
Founded in 1970 and headquartered in Hong Kong. the Group is principally engaged in the retail
and wholesale distribution, primarily under exclusive franchise agreements, of leading international
fashion, accessory and beauty product brands in Greater China. Hong Kong distribution accounts for
approximately 89% of the Group's total annual revenue.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's retail operations comprise a total of 39 outlets in Hong Kong.
mainland China and Taiwan, including multi-label stores under the name JOYCE and JOYCE
Warehouse, mono-brand boutiques including Marni shops in a joint venture partnership with Marni
Group s.r.l, and shops under the name JOYCE Beauty and JOYCE Grooming.

The Group operates two mainland China offices, one in Shanghai and one in Beijing. to provide local
logistics support to the mainland China operations. Two additional offices, one in Milan and another in
Paris, provide procurement support to the Group’s merchandising department.

(vi) Business Strategy
With years of experience in store design, merchandising, marketing and customer relationship
management, the Group continues to identify and promote less well-established designers and
brands with strong growth potential while sustaining the growth of well-established labels.

The buying and editing of seasonal fashion collections are based on knowledge of customer
preferences and detailed customer data analysis. The Joyce Card was introduced in the 1990s and is
an important component of the Group's innovative marketing and customer-loyalty program.

The Group optimizes profitability and productivity through prudent inventory management and strict
overhead controls, and through strategic site selection for mono-brand and multi-label retail outlets.

The Group believes that the high-end multi-label segment of the mainland China specialty retail
market is underserved, and presents a potentially attractive long-term growth opportunity.

(B) BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(1

Directors

Stephen Tin Hoi NG, Chairman (Age: 65)

Mr. Ng has been a Director of the Company since 2000 and became non-executive Chairman in November
2007. He also serves as a member and chairman of Nomination Committee. Among other listed companies
in Hong Kong and Singapore, Mr. Ng is deputy chairman of Wheelock and Company Limited ("Wheelock"),
chairman and managing director of The Wharf (Holdings) Limited ("Wharf") and Wharf Real Estate
Investment Company Limited ("Wharf REIC"), chairman of Harbour Centre Development Limited ("HCDL")
and Wheelock Properties (Singapore) Limited ("WPSL"), all being subsidiaries of Wheelock, as well as a
non-executive director of Hotel Properties Limited, an associate of Wheelock. He formerly served as
chairman and chief executive officer of publicly listed i-CABLE Communications Limited until his resignation
in September 2017.

Mr. Ng was born in Hong Kong in 1952 and grew up in Hong Kong. He attended Ripon College in Ripon,
Wisconsin, U.S.A. and the University of Bonn, Germany. from 1971 to 1975, with a major in mathematics. He is
chairman of Project WeCan Committee, a vice chairman of the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong and a
council member of Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce.

Antonio CHAN, Director (Age: 70)

Mr. Chan, DMin, FCA (AUST), FCPA, FGIA, FHKIoD., has been an Independent Non-executive Director ("INED")
of the Company since 2004. He also serves as a member and chairman of Audit Committee, and a member
of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Chan has spent more than 40 years in the
accounting profession and practised as a certified public accountant in Hong Kong for over 20 years. He
has had extensive experience in management, auditing and investigation, executive recruitment, business
consulting, corporate finance and administration. He currently serves as a non-stipendiary minister in a
church. Mr. Chan is a Chartered Accountant and Certified Practising Accountant in Australia and a Fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Governance Institute of Australia and The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. He holds a Doctor of Ministry degree from the King's University, United States.

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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OTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION

Doreen Yuk Fong LEE, Director (Age: 62)

Ms. Lee has been a Director of the Company since 2003. She is a vice chairman of Wharf and Wharf REIC, as
well as chairman and senior managing director of Wharf Estates Limited and Wharf China Estates Limited,
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Wharf REIC and Wharf respectively. She is a graduate of The University of
Hong Kong where she obtained her bachelor's degree in Arts (Hon).

Eric Kai Kin LO, Director (Age: 69)

Mr. Lo has been an INED of the Company since 1997. He also serves as a member and chairman of
Remuneration Committee, and a member of Audit Committee. Mr. Lo is an INED of publicly listed The
Sincere Company, Limited as well as a director of several companies in Hong Kong.

Tze Yuen NG, Director (Age: 70)

Mr. Ng, ACPA, ACMA, was a Non-executive Director of the Company between October 2000 and August
2008 and has been an INED of the Company since April 2016. He also serves as a member of Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Ng was formerly a Director of Wharf until his retirement in
January 2015 as well as a Director of HCDL until his resignation in April 2013.

Paul Yiu Cheung TSUI, Director (Age: 71)

Mr. Tsui, FCCA, FCPA, FCMA, CGMA, CPA, CGA. has been a Director of the Company since 2000. He also
serves as a member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee as well as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He is an executive director and group chief financial officer of Wheelock,

a vice chairman and group chief financial officer of Wharf and a vice chairman of Wharf REIC. Mr. Tsui
joined Wheelock/Wharf group in 1996 and became a director of Wheelock in 1998. He is a vice chairman
of Wheelock Properties Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Wheelock. He formerly served as a non-
executive director of i-CABLE until his resignation in September 2017, and a director of HCDL and WPSL
until his resignations in August 2015. He is currently a general committee member of the Employers’
Federation of Hong Kong ("EFHK") and chairman of the EFHK's "Property & Construction” functional group.

Note: The Company confirms that it has received written confirmation from each of the INEDs confirming their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers them independent.

(N Senior Management
Andrew D. F. KEITH, President (Age: 48)
Mr. Andrew Keith is the President of Greater China multi-brand fashion retail groups Lane Crawford and
JOYCE Boutique. Mr. Keith was appointed President of JOYCE Boutique in 2008, and since his appointment,
has successfully redefined JOYCE's position as the pinnacle of fashion and creativity, and revamped its
stores and brand assortment. He also secured franchise agreements for management and distribution of
some of JOYCE's most popular brands including Rick Owens and Alexander McQueen. Mr. Keith brings more
than 23 years experience in the fashion industry across product development and design, merchandising
and brand management to The Lane Crawford JOYCE Group.

(C) DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance

(Cap. 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the "SFO") in respect of information required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange by the Directors and/or Chief Executive of the Company pursuant to the SFO or to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (or any other applicable code), there were
no interests, whether long or short positions, held or deemed to be interested as at 31 March 2018 by any of the
Directors or Chief Executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), nor had there been any rights to subscribe for
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations held by or deemed
to be interested by any of them as at 31 March 2018.
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OTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

Given below are the names of all parties who/which were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of any
class of voting shares of the Company as at 31 March 2018, the respective relevant numbers of shares in which
they were, and/or were deemed to be, interested as at that date as recorded in the register kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO (the "Register”):

Names No. of Ordinary Shares
(percentage based on
number of shares in issue)

(i) JoyBo International Limited ("JBIL" 1,183.838.723 (72.90%)
(i) Wisdom Gateway Limited ("WGL") 1,183.838.,723 (72.90%)
(il HSBC Trustee (C.I) Limited ("HSBC CI") 1,183,838.723 (72.90%)
(iv)  Mr. Peter K. C. Woo 1,183.838.723 (72.90%)
Notes:

(1) For the avoidance of doubt and double counting, it should be noted that all of the shareholdings stated above represent the same

block of shares.

2) HSBC Cl's deemed shareholding interests stated above were held by virtue of its 100% shareholding interests in WGL. HSBC C/
held the interests in WGL as the trustee of a trust of which Mr. Peter K. C. Woo is the settlor.

3) WGL's deemed shareholding interests stated above were held through its wholly-owned subsidiary, JBIL.

All the interests stated above represented long positions. As at 31 March 2018, there were no short position
interests recorded in the Register.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of the pension schemes of the Group and the employers’ pension costs charged to the Consolidated
Income Statement for the year under review are set out in Note 2.16(c) to the Consolidated Financial Statements
on page 95, and Note 7 on page 110 respectively.

The total employers’ pension cost in respect of all pension schemes of the Group. including the cost related to the
Mandatory Provident Fund which is not operated by the Group. charged to the Consolidated Income Statement
during the year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to HK$7.5 million after utilisation of forfeitures in the amount of
HK$1.3 million to reduce the Group's contributions.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS & SUPPLIERS

For the financial year ended 31 March 2018:

(i the aggregate amount of purchases (not including the purchases of items which are of a capital nature)
attributable to the five largest suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group's total purchases;

(ii) the aggregate amount of revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services attributable to the five
largest customers represented less than 30% of the Group's total revenue;

(i) as far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors, their close associates, nor those Shareholders whom
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company, had
any interest in the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Set out below is information disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Paul Y. C. Tsui, being also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company's parent company, namely Wisdom
Gateway Limited ("WGL"), is considered under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules as having an interest in certain
subsidiary(ies) of WGL which is/are engaged in retail businesses or an interest in certain sub-holding company(ies)
of the relevant subsidiary(ies).

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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OTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Lane Crawford store and some other retail businesses carried on by the relevant subsidiary(ies) of WGL to

a certain extent constitute competing businesses of the Group. Nevertheless, since the retail businesses of the
Group are primarily targeted at different sectors of the market and would attract customers of different spending
power or habit compared to those carried on by the relevant subsidiary(ies) of WGL, the Group considers that its
interests in the relevant sector of retailing business is adequately safeguarded.

For safeguarding the interests of the Group. the INEDs and the Audit Committee of the Company would on

a regular basis review the business and operational results of the Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group's
retailing businesses are and continue to be run on the basis that they are independent of, and at arm’s length from,
that of WGL group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the laws or regulations of Bermuda (in which country the
Company was incorporated) which, in the event of new shares being issued by the Company, would oblige the
Company to offer new shares to existing Shareholders, or, in the event of any Shareholders intending to dispose of
any of their shareholdings in the Company, would require such Shareholders to offer to sell the relevant shares to
other Shareholders of the Company.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

No bank borrowings were outstanding as at 31 March 2018.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the financial year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules throughout the
financial year ended 31 March 2018.

DISCLOSURE OF CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below is information in relation to certain continuing connected transactions involving the Company and/
or its subsidiaries, particulars of which were previously disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated

6 March 2015, 9 February 2017 and 22 March 2018 respectively and are required under the Listing Rules to be
disclosed in the Annual Report and Financial Statements of the Company.

) Master Agreement for leasing transactions with rents payable by the Group
During the financial year, there existed a master agreement (the "Master Agreement (Rents Payable)’)
entered into between the Company and WGL on 9 February 2017 for a term of three years from 1 April 2017
to 31 March 2020 for the purposes of, inter alia: (i) regulating certain concession arrangements with Lane
Crawford (Hong Kong) Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of WGL) ("LCHK") for the use of premises by the
Group at retail spaces inside various Lane Crawford stores operated by LCHK; (ii) regulating certain tenancy
arrangements for commercial spaces, including office and retail spaces, between the Group and WGL and/
or its subsidiaries; and (iii) stipulating an annual cap amount of rental and/or revenue commission payable
by the Group to WGL group in relation thereto at HK$24 million per annum.

The aggregate annual rental/revenue commission paid by the Group to WGL and/or its subsidiaries
including LCHK under various individual concession arrangements and tenancy agreements as covered
by the Master Agreement (Rents Payable), which is subject to the relevant annual cap amount as
abovementioned, for financial year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to HK$23.7 million.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018
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Master Agreement for leasing transactions with rents receivable by the Group

During the financial year, there existed a master concession agreement (the "Master Concession Agreement
(Rents Receivable)’) entered into between the Company and WGL on 4 March 2015 for a term of three years
from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2018 for the purpose of, inter alia, regulating various concession arrangements
between certain subsidiaries of the Company as tenants and certain subsidiaries and/or associated
companies of WGL as concessionaires in respect of the leasing of retail spaces inside various JOYCE shops
and stipulating an annual cap amount of rental and/or revenue commission payable by WGL group to the

Group in relation thereto at HK$36 million for the financial year ended 31 March 2018,

On 22 March 2018, a renewal master agreement (the "Renewal Master Agreement (Rents Receivable)’) was
entered into between the Company and WGL for another fixed term of three years from 1 April 2018 to

31 March 2021 for the purpose of, inter alia. providing for an annual cap amount of rental and/or revenue
commission receivable by the Group from WGL group in relation thereto at HK$26.5 million per annum.

The aggregate annual rental/revenue commission received by the Group from WGL group under various
individual concession agreements as covered by the Master Concession Agreement (Rents Receivable),
which is subject to the relevant annual cap amount as abovementioned, for the financial year ended 31
March 2018 amounted to HK$30.8 million.

WGL being a substantial shareholder is regarded as a connected person of the Company within the
meaning under the Listing Rules, the transactions mentioned under sections (L)) and (L)1) above constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Directors, including INEDs, of the Company have reviewed the continuing connected transactions mentioned
under sections L(I) and L(ID) above (collectively, the "Transactions”) and have confirmed that the Transactions
were entered into:

(@ by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business;
() on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the agreements governing such Transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Group has followed the specific pricing terms set out in the relevant agreements for the Transactions
conducted during the year.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 "Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 8 and
9 of the Annual Report in accordance with paragraph 14A. 56 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A copy of the auditor's letter has been provided by the
Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Note:

Certain particulars of the related party transactions entered into by the Group during the financial year ended 31 March 2018 have
been disclosed in Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 129. Those related party transactions disclosed in
item (a) also constitute connected transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules) for the Company and the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(M) PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Set out below are the principal risks and uncertainties that are considered significant to the Group's businesses,
results of operations and financial conditions.

Fashion trends

The designer fashion and specialty retailing industries are sensitive to fast changing consumer preferences. The
Group's ability to identify emerging fashion-forward brands with strong growth potential and to spot influential
cultural and lifestyle trends is key to the sustained growth of the Group's core business. The Group employs an
experienced merchandising team with the requisite professional knowledge, insights and corporate resources to
anticipate and capitalize on customer demand.

Brand image and reputation

Brand image and reputation are vital to the luxury retail industry, especially with respect to the Group's multi-brand
fashion and beauty store business model. The Group places great emphasis on due diligence in selecting brand
partners, with selection criteria including product style and design, quality of materials used and each prospective
brand’s credentials and history.

Intensified competition from online sellers

The popularity of online shopping is disruptive and poses a growing threat to the Group's existing core business of
traditional bricks-and-mortar specialty retailing. To mitigate these risks, the Group actively develops new strategies
for strengthening customer loyalty, adding unique offline value to the shopping experience and enhancing
marketing communications with VIP customers.

Store locations and lease renewals

The Group's retail store operations are necessarily situated at prime urban locations and districts. As suitable
locations are limited in supply. their availability and respective commercial leasing terms are external factors over
which the Group has minimal control.

Legal and compliance risks

The Group has policies and procedures in place to ensure full compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group's business and operations. Management regularly reviews and assesses
the impact of any recent changes and developments in applicable laws, rules and regulations, and seeks external
advice when deemed necessary.

Financial risks

The Group is exposed to financial risks including foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow
interest rate risk in the normal course of its business. For further details of such risks and relevant policies, please
refer to note 3 to the financial statements from pages 98 to 103,

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, all the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited were met by the Company.

(B)

(C)

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model
Code") set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and all
of them have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the
financial year ended 31 March 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(1)

Composition of the Board, Number of Board/General Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced composition. Four Board
meetings and one general meeting were held during the financial year ended 31 March 2018. The
composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set out below:

Attendance/Number of Meeting(s)

Directors Board Meetings General Meeting
Chairman

Stephen T. H. Ng 4/4 1/1
Non-executive Directors

Doreen Y. F. Lee 4/4 0/1
Paul Y. C. Tsui 4/4 1/1

Independent Non-executive Directors

Antonio Chan 4/4 1/1
Eric K. K Lo 4/4 1/1
T.Y.Ng 4/4 1/1

Each Director of the Company has been appointed on the strength of his/her calibre, experience and
stature, and his/her potential to contribute to the proper guidance of the Group and its businesses. Apart
from formal meetings. matters requiring Board approval were arranged by means of circulation of written
resolutions.

Board Diversity

The Company's Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the "Policy™. Under the Policy, the Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board with a vision for the Company to achieving
a sustainable and balanced development. Appointments of Directors are made on merits while having due
regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board.

At present, 50% of the Directors on the Board are Independent Non-executive Directors ("INED(s)"). They
represent diverse career experience in both international and local enterprises. They bring with them diverse
professional backgrounds, spanning management, auditing, consulting and corporate finance.

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The board composition reflects various cultural and educational backgrounds, professional development,
length of service, knowledge of the Company and a broad range of individual attributes, interests and
values. The Board considers the current Board composition has provided the Company with a good balance
and diversity of skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of its business. The Board will
continue to review its composition from time to time taking into consideration specific needs for the Group's
business.

Operation of the Board

The Company is headed by an effective Board which makes decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company. The Company's management has closely monitored changes to regulations that affect its
corporate affairs and businesses, and changes to accounting standards, and adopted appropriate reporting
format in its interim report, annual report and other related documents to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group's performance, position and prospects. Where these changes are
pertinent to the Company or Directors’ disclosure obligations, the Directors are either briefed during Board
meetings or issued with regular updates and materials to keep them abreast of their responsibilities and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Group. Newly appointed Directors receive briefings
and orientation on their legal and other responsibilities as a Director and the role of the Board. The Company
has also provided appropriate information in a timely manner to the Directors to enable them to make an
informed decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities as Directors of the Company.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and the management. Decisions on important
matters are specifically reserved to the Board while decisions on the Group's general operations are
delegated to the management. Important matters include those affecting the Group's strategic policies,
major investment and funding decisions and major commitments relating to the Group'’s operations.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

The Company has arranged for Directors to attend training sessions and forums which place emphasis
on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director, as well as the development of regulatory
updates and issues. All Directors are required to provide training records to the Company and the training
records are maintained by the Company Secretary.

According to the records of training maintained by the Company Secretary, all the current Directors have,
during the financial year under review, pursued continuous professional development and relevant details
are set out below:

Type of trainings

Directors (See Remarks)
Stephen T. H. Ng A B
Doreen Y. F. Lee A B
Paul Y. C. Tsui A B
Antonio Chan A B
Eric K K Lo A B
T.Y.Ng A B
Remarks:

A attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

B: reading journals, updates, articles and/or materials, etc.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The posts of Chairman and Chief Executive are distinct and separate.

Chairman, namely Mr. Stephen T. H. Ng, who is a Non-executive Director, is responsible for leading and managing
the operation of the Board, focuses on Group strategies and Board issues, and ensures a cohesive working
relationship between members of the Board and management. He also monitors the performance of the Senior
Management of the Group. Presently, no employee of the Company holds the office of chief executive. The job
functions of chief executive of the Company and the Group are performed by Mr. Andrew D. F. Keith and he is
accountable to Chairman.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Under the Company's Bye-laws, all Directors of the Company are subject to retirement at each Annual General
Meeting and are subject to re-election. Any new Directors appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or
as an addition to the Board are subject to re-election by Shareholders at the next general meeting of the Company.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Three out of six Directors are INEDs, a sufficient number to ensure their views to carry weight and implanting a
strong independence element into the Board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the INEDs concerning their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers that all INEDs are independent and meet the
independence guidelines set out thereunder.

The re-election of any INEDs who has served on the Board for more than nine years is subject to (1) a separate
resolution to be approved by Shareholders; and (2) further information to be set out in the circular to Shareholders
regarding the reasons why the Board believes the relevant INED is still independent and should be re-elected.

BOARD COMMITTEES

) Audit Committee
The Company has set up an Audit Committee comprising four members, namely Mr. Antonio Chan, Mr. Eric K,
K. Lo, Mr. T. Y. Ng. all of whom are INEDs, and Mr. Paul Y. C. Tsui, a Non-executive Director, with Mr. Antonio
Chan acting as chairman of Audit Committee.

All Audit Committee members have sufficient experience in reviewing audited financial statements as aided
by the auditors of the Group whenever required. In addition, Mr. Antonio Chan, Mr. Paul Y. C. Tsui and Mr. T. V.
Ng have the appropriate professional qualifications and/or experience in financial matters.

Three Audit Committee meetings were held during the financial year ended 31 March 2018. Attendance of
Audit Committee members is set out below:

Attendance/
Members Number of Meetings
Antonio Chan (Chairman) 3/3
Eric K. K. Lo 3/3
T.Y. Ng 3/3
Paul Y. C. Tsui 3/3

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The terms of reference of Audit Committee are aligned with the provisions set out in the CG Code
and the recommendations set out in "A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Given below are the main duties of Audit Committee:

(A)

(B)

Relationship with the Company’s external auditors

(@)

()

(c)

to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditors, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors, and any questions of
their resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable standards. Audit
Committee should discuss with the auditors the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences; and

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to supply non-audit
services. For this purpose, “external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable
and informed third party knowing all relevant information would reasonably conclude
to be part of the audit firm nationally or internationally. Audit Committee should report
to the Board, identifying and making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed.

Review of the Company's financial information

(@)

to monitor integrity of financial statements of the Company and the Company's annual
report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports,
and to review significant financial reporting judgments contained in them. In reviewing
these reports before submission to the Board, the Audit Committee should focus
particularly on:

(M) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;
(V) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi)  compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to financial
reporting:

regarding (B)(@) above:
(M) Audit Committee members should liaise with the Company's Board and Senior

Management and the Audit Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with the
Company’s external auditors; and

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018
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(i) Audit Committee should consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may
need to be, reflected in the report and accounts, it should give due consideration
to any matters that have been raised by the Company’s staff responsible for the
accounting and financial reporting function, or for compliance function or auditors
(internal or external.

Oversight of the Company's financial reporting system, and risk management and internal
control systems

(@)

()

(c)

(d)

(e)

(e))

(h)

(M

(k)

to review the Company's risk management and internal control systems covering all
controls; including financial, operational and compliance controls;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have effective systems. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budgets of the Company's accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management and internal control matters
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and management's response to these
findings and review the statements concerning risk management and internal control to
be included in the annual report;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, to review and
approve the annual internal audit plan, to ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company for it to
carry out an analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Company’s financial reporting system and risk management and internal control
systems, and to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit function:;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices;

to review the external auditors’ management letter, any material queries raised by the
auditors to management about accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and management's response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues raised in the
external auditors’ management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters in the Code Provisions in the Listing Rules;

to review arrangements employees of the Company can use, in confidence, to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. Audit Committee should ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair
and independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up action;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s relations with the
external auditors; and
to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Oversight of the Company's Corporate Governance Matters
(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors
and Senior Management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop. review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

(ii) The Group has adopted and established a Whistleblowing Policy & Procedures. Audit Committee has
the delegated authority and responsibility, for employees and those who deal with the Group (e.g.
customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence, with the Company Secretary, and any and
all relevant complaints received may then be referred to Audit Committee and/or Chairman of the
Company about possible improprieties in any matter related to the Group.

(i The work performed by Audit Committee for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 is summarised

below:

(@)

(e)

)

(@)

(h)

review of the annual audit plan of the external auditors before the audit commences, and
discussion with them about the nature and scope of the audit;

approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors;

review of the external auditors’ independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of audit
process in accordance with applicable standards;

review of the half-year and annual financial statements before submission to the Board, with
particular consideration of the points mentioned in paragraph ()(B) above regarding the duties
of Audit Committee;

review of the internal audit report and annual audit plan of the internal audit function and its
effectiveness;

review of the Group's risk management and internal control systems and the statements
concerning risk management and internal control to be included in the annual report;

meeting with the external auditors without presence of the management; and

review of whistle-blowing cases and relevant investigation results.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee comprising three members, namely Mr. Antonio Chan
and Mr. Eric K. K. Lo who are both INEDs, and Mr. Paul Y. C. Tsui, a Non-executive Director, with Mr. Eric K. K.
Lo acting as chairman of Remuneration Committee.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018
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Two Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the financial year ended 31 March 2018.
Attendance of Remuneration Committee members is set out below:

Attendance/
Members Number of Meetings
Eric K. K. Lo (Chairman) 2/2
Antonio Chan 2/2
Paul Y. C. Tsui 2/2
(M The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee are aligned with the provisions set out in the CG
Code. Given below are the main duties of Remuneration Committee:
€)) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and structure for

remuneration of all Directors and Senior Management, and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(o) to review and approve the management's remuneration proposals by reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives;

(c) either:

(M) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and Senior Management; or

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and Senior Management.

This should include benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

(e) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;

(f) to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors and Senior Management
for any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(9 to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

(h) to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration;
and
(M to advise Shareholders on how to vote with respect to any service contracts of Directors that

require Shareholders’ approval under the Listing Rules.
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(ii) The work performed by Remuneration Committee, which has the delegated authority and
responsibility, for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 is summarised below:

(a) review of the Company's policy and structure of all remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management;

(b) consideration and approval of the emoluments for all Directors and Senior Management; and
(c) review of the level of fees for Directors and Audit Committee members.

The basis of determining the emoluments payable to its Directors and Senior Management by the
Company is by reference to the level of emoluments normally paid by a listed company in Hong
Kong to directors and senior executives of comparable calibre and job responsibilities so as to ensure
a fair and competitive remuneration package as is fit and appropriate. The basis of determining the
fee payable to each of the INEDs of the Company at the rate of HK$45,000 per annum and the fee
payable to Chairman of Audit Committee at the rate of HK$10,000 per annum is by reference to the
level of fees of similar nature normally paid by a listed company in Hong Kong to its audit committee
members.

Nomination Committee

The Company has set up a Nomination Committee comprising three members, namely Chairman Mr.
Stephen T. H. Ng (as chairman of Nomination Committee) and two INEDs, namely Mr. Antonio Chan and Mr. T.
Y. Ng.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, no physical meeting of Nomination Committee was held as
there is no change in Board members of the Company.

The terms of reference of Nomination Committee are aligned with the provisions set out in the CG Code.
Given below are the main duties of Nomination Committee:

(a) to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of INEDs; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman of the Board and the chief executive.

Corporate Governance Functions

While the Board is and remains to be principally responsible for the corporate governance functions of
the Company, it has delegated the relevant duties to Audit Committee to ensure the proper performance
of corporate governance functions of the Company. In this connection, the terms of reference of Audit
Committee include various duties relating to corporate governance matters which are set out in paragraph
(D) Oversight of the Company's Corporate Governance Matters™ on page 16 under subsection “(/) Audit
Committee™ of section "(G) Board Committees” above.
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(H) AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The fees in relation to services for the financial year ended 31 March 2018, all related to the audit and taxation,
provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of the Company, amounted to HK$0.8 million and
HK$0.2 million respectively.

() RISKMANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Risk Governance Structure

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control systems of the Group. It oversees the
systems on an ongoing basis. Reporting to the Board, Audit Committee is delegated with the authority and
responsibility for ongoing monitoring and evaluation of the effectiveness of the relevant systems, with the
assistance of Risk Management and Internal Control Committee ("RMICC").

The Group’s current corporate governance, risk management and internal control framework can be
diagrammatically shown as below:

Other
Shareholders |¢ ----------------------~---~ > Stakeholders

¢ Investing Public
¢ Employees

4

Board of e Customers

Directors h Chairman ¢ Suppliers
A y e Creditors
< e Banks

.

* Regulators

_________ 1
Remuneration Audit Nomination Company q--- - _: Whistle-blowing |
Committee Committee Committee Sectetary | system |
——————— —— ol
A
External Risk Management Internal
Auditors and Auditors
Internal Control
Committee
(“RMICC")

Note: According to Joyce Group's Whistleblowing Policy & Procedures ("Whistleblowing Policy’) (Section 4), Audit Committee has been
delegated by the Chairman of the Company day-to-day responsibility for overseeing and implementing the Whistleblowing
Policy.
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Risk Management and Internal Control Committee
RMICC plays a central role in the ongoing management of risk management and internal control system of the
Group with the following features:

Objective Assist Audit Committee in discharge of its oversight responsibility over the risk
management and internal control system of the Group.

Structure Accountable to Audit Committee on all matters relating to risk management and internal
control.

Supervision of Department Heads who in turn are responsible for the identification and
reporting of functional risks, and the ongoing supervision and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

Scope & Duties Assist Audit Committee to conduct periodical reviews of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group based on the certification
procedure.

Report to Audit Committee on identified risks, relevant evaluations and risk management
strategy.

Direct and monitor the proper functioning of Departments’ internal control systems and
report to Audit Committee on any major internal control issues from time to time.

Assume an advisory role on objective settings, formulation of internal control framework,
policies and procedures.

Practices and Processes

Risk management and internal controls within the Group are not just serial processes but dynamic and integrated
operations embedded in the day-to-day routines with the primary ownership vested on the respective business
units under stewardship residing with the Board.

Areas of responsibility of each operational unit are clearly defined with specific limits of authority in place to ensure
effective checks and balances. Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use
or disposition, maintenance of proper accounting records, assurance of the reliability of financial information for
internal use or publication and compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. Risk management system,
internal control measures and procedures are continuously under review and being improved where necessary in
response to changes in business, operating and regulatory environments. Furthermore, a Whistleblowing Policy &
Procedures ("Whistleblowing Policy”) has been adopted by the Group, with the authority and responsibility being
delegated to Audit Committee. Such Whistleblowing Policy is for employees and those who deal with the Group
(e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence, with Company Secretary, and any and all relevant
complaints received may then be referred to Audit Committee and/or Chairman of the Company about possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Group.

The internal audit function monitors compliance with policies and standards and the effectiveness of internal
control structures across the whole Group. Findings regarding internal control matters are reported to Audit
Committee. The external auditors have access to a full set of internal audit reports.
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Periodical Reviews

Under the leadership of RMICC, system reviews in a comprehensive approach on the basis of COSO (Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission) framework are conducted throughout the Group at least
annually. Each business unit makes a self-assessment by a process as illustrated in the following flow diagram.

. . Assess , ,
Setting of Identify likelihood Examine Evaluation
business } risk } of each } control } and
objectives factors fisk factor activities conclusion

Each business unit reports on its reviews and findings, with the conclusions as to the effectiveness of the risk
management and control activities, while RMICC will draw an overall review and conclusion for reporting to Audit
Committee and the Board. Such reviewing exercise is scheduled to be carried out on a regular basis and affords
good opportunities for the Group to identify and prioritise risks, and to develop and manage appropriate measures
to control risks within acceptable levels and with a greater focus on anti-fraud measures.

Annual Confirmation

During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, Audit Committee, with assistance of RMICC, has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and procedures covering
all controls, including financial, operational and compliance and risk management, and the adequacy of, inter

alia, resources, qualifications, experience and training of staff of the Company's accounting. internal audit and
financial reporting function. Confirmations from management in the form of certification that risk management and
internal control procedures are functioning effectively to meet the respective financial reporting, operational and
compliance needs, are submitted by business and corporate unit heads to RMICC for consolidation and reporting
to Audit Committee.

Based on the result of the review as reported by Audit Committee, in respect of the financial year ended 31
March 2018. Directors considered that the risk management and internal control systems and procedures of the
Group were effective and adequate, and the Group has duly complied with the requirements under the Corporate
Governance Code relating to the risk management and internal control.

A discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties encountered by the Group are set out on page 10 in Other
Corporate Information.

Inside Information
The Company recognises the significance of consistent practices of fair disclosure with the aim of disclosing inside
information in a timely and accurate manner.

The Company has implemented standard procedures for handling and disseminating the Company's inside
information in compliance with the requirements under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571
of the laws of Hong Kong) and the Listing Rules. Company Secretary works closely with the senior executives in
identifying potential inside information and assess the materiality thereof, and where appropriate, to escalate such
information for the attention of the Board to resolve on further action(s) complying with the applicable laws and
regulations.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements for the financial year ended 31
March 2018, which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and of the Group and of the
Group's results and cash flow for the year then ended and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the laws of Hong Kong), the laws of Bermuda and the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Listing Rules.

The responsibilities of the external auditors are to form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on the financial
statements.

In preparing the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2018:

(i appropriate accounting policies are selected, applied consistently and in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards;

(ii) prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates are made: and

(iii) the reasons for any significant departure from applicable accounting standards are stated. if applicable.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

A Shareholders Communication Policy has been adopted by the Company to ensure that Shareholders are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable information about the Company
(including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments, governance and risk profile),
in order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow Shareholders and the
investment community to engage actively with the Company.

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting
of its performances and activities. Annual and interim reports are published/printed and sent to all Shareholders.
Such reports and press releases are posted and are available for download at the Company's corporate website
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/joyce/index htm. Constantly being updated in a timely manner, the website contains a
wide range of additional information on the Group's business activities. As a standard part of the investor relations
programme to maintain a constant dialogue on the Group's performance and objectives, senior executives hold
regular briefings and attend conferences with institutional investors and financial analysts.

The Company encourages its Shareholders to attend annual general meetings to ensure a high level of
accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and goals.

Directors and external auditors attend the annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions.
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(L) SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

) Convene a Special General Meeting
Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act, on requisition of one or more Shareholders in aggregate holding
not less than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general meetings.
Directors of the Company must convene a special general meeting.

() Send Enquiries to the Board
The Company's corporate website provides email address, postal address, fax number and telephone
number by which Shareholders may at any time address their concerns or enquiries to the Company's
Board.

(1 Make Proposals at General Meetings
(M The procedures for proposing candidate(s) for election as Director(s) at a Shareholders’ meeting are
set out in the Corporate Governance section of the Company's corporate website.

(i) The procedures for proposing resolution(s) to be moved at a Shareholders’ meeting are as follows:

Shareholder(s) can submit a written requisition to move a resolution at a Shareholders’ meeting
pursuant to Section 79 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 if they -

(a) represent not less than 5% of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the Shareholders’ meeting: or

(o) are no less than 100 Shareholders holding the Company’s shares.
The written requisition must -

1 contain the signatures of all the requisitionists (which may be contained in one document or in
several documents in like form):

) be deposited at the Company's registered office in Bermuda (Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda) and its principal office in Hong Kong (26/F, One Island South, 2
Heung Yip Road, Wong Chuk Hang. Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company Secretary
not less than 6 weeks (as required in most circumstances under the applicable laws) before the
Shareholders’ meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less
than 1 week before the Shareholders’ meeting in the case of any other requisition; and

(3 be accompanied by a sum of money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’'s expenses in
serving the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement given by the requisitions to all
Shareholders in accordance with the requirements under the applicable laws and rules.

(M) CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the financial year ended 31 March
2018.

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
_23-



JOYCE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

For the financial year ended 31 March 2018, the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements as set out
in Appendix 27 Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Emissions

The Group is committed to protecting the natural environment by assessing the environmental impact of its planning
and operational decisions, conducting its operations in a manner that minimises pollution and conserves energy and
resources, and promoting environmental awareness among its staff and other stakeholders.

The Group’s Green House Gas ("GHG") emissions were classified into 3 scopes. The relevant activities and environmental
KPIs are listed below:

Scope of GHG emissions Emission (in tonnes of CO,e)
2017718 2016/17
Scope 1 Direct Emission Combustion of fuel used by private car 7.2 12.6
Scope 2 Indirect Emission Purchased Electricity 1,229.4 1.580.2
Scope 3 Other Indirect Emission 90.8 93.0
Total 1,327.4 1,685.8

Use of Resources
The Group instructs staff to make more efficient use of resources, including electricity, water, paper and shopping bags.

The Group has adopted the following practices and taken the following measures to conserve energy and promote the
efficient use of resources:

(i Office lights are turned off during lunch hour.

(ii) Staff are instructed to print only when necessary and to use double-sided printing modes to minimize paper usage.
(iii) Electronic filing of documents is encouraged.

(iv) Printing and photocopying equipment use recycled paper, toner and cartridges.

(iv) Retail customers are encouraged to bring their own shopping bags.

The Group's business operations resulted in a total electricity consumption of 1,688,379 kWh in 2017/18 (2016/17: 2,053,402
KWh).
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THE WORKPLACE

Employment

The Group recognises human resources as the core of the organisation. It is the collective effort of its employees that
ensures the continued success of the Group. As a responsible employer, the Group strictly adheres to the following
management principles:

° Hire the Best

° Reward Performance
° Develop Talent

° Respect Privacy

° Promote Fairness

Good MPF Employer

The Group is being honoured as a Good MPF Employer Award and presented with E-Contribution Award and Support for
MPF Management Award by Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority. These awards are to recognise the Group
who place a high value on employees’ retirement needs, promote and foster compliance with MPF legislation.

Good Employer Charter

The Group is being confirmed the eligibility to be the Good Employer Charter by Labour Department. The Group who
participate of this Charter pledge to be an employee-oriented employer and adopt good people management practices,
thereby cultivating a good people management culture in the workplace.

Health and Safety
The Group is committed to maintaining safe, secure and hygienic working conditions for its employees. To ensure safety,
security and health in the workplace, the Group has established the following:

(i) Typhoon and rainstorm policies;
(ii) Fire precaution guidelines;
(i Office and shop security measures; and

(iv)  Guidelines on the lifting of heavy objects.

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Development and Training

In line with the Group's strategy to train and retain a highly competent and motivated workforce, it provides a range
of learning and development opportunities to employees that are relevant to their job responsibilities, personal
development and career advancement.

Learning and development activities include coaching and mentoring, off-the-job classroom and on-the-job training. job
rotation, and special project assignments.

Labour Standards
All employees are provided with handbooks detailing Group employment policies and benefits. The Group complies with
all relevant legislation including:

(i) Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57);

(ii) Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608);

(iii) Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485);
(iv) Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486);

(v) Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480);

(vi)  Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487);

(vi) - Family Status Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 527); and

(vii)  Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 602).

Employment Data

As at 31 March 2018, the Group employed 399 staff globally, 89% are employed on a full-time basis while 11% are on part-
time basis. Female employees represent 79% of our total workforce. The Group's staff aged under 30 years old, 30 to

39 years old, 40 to 49 years old and 50 years old and above represented approximately 25%, 36%, 22% and 17% of the
Group's total workforce, respectively 70% of the staff are employed as general staff of the Group and 82% of the total
workforce of the Group are from Hong Kong.
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Below is the profile of our people in 2017/18:

WORKFORCE BY
EMPLOYMENT TYPE

|
Full Time
|

Part Time

11%

89%

WORKFORCE BY
EMPLOYMENT CATEGORIES

Management  Supervisory Staff

|
General Staff

14%

16%

WORKFORCE BY
AGE GROUP

]
Under 30 30-39

40-49 50 and above

17% 25%

22%
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OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

The Group undertakes to act ethically, responsibly, transparently, fairly and professionally in all its commercial activities
and relationships. The Group sources trustworthy suppliers of high-quality products and services and places a priority on
identifying suppliers having well-defined environmental and social responsibility policies.

Product Responsibility
Best-in-class quality and user experience.

In advertising and promoting its products and services, the Group strictly complies with all relevant regulations
concerning marketing communications and with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the laws of Hong
Kong) in the collection and use of customers’ personal data.

In promoting its products and services, the Group also strictly abides by the Competition Ordinance (Cap. 619 of the laws
of Hong Kong) to ensure customers enjoy full freedom of choice in a competitive marketplace.

Anti-corruption Policy

It is the Group's policy to conduct all of its business in an honest and ethical manner. The Group adheres to a zero-
tolerance policy to bribery and corruption and is committed to ensuring that all employees act professionally, fairly and
with integrity in all commercial transactions and relationships. The Group is committed to implementing and enforcing
effective systems and procedures to prevent, detect, and remediate bribery.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group is committed to meeting its corporate social responsibilities ("CSR"), emphasising staff participation in
diverse charitable activities that engage the community. During the past year, the Group organised and facilitated staff
participation in the following projects:

(i Partner with Fu Hong Society, a Hong Kong NGO which supports persons with disabilities, on the following
activities:

€)) Three art workshops (making recycle bag. paper art and lantern);
(o) One outing activity to Hong Kong Museum of Coastal Defence;
(@) One cookies baking workshop in Fu Hong Society's bakery: and
(d) Provide merchandise for Fu Hong Charity dinner Fashion Show;

(ii) Provide volunteer services for Food Angel, a food rescue and assistance program. to help prepare raw vegetables
and hot meal boxes and be redistributed to serve the underprivileged communities;

(i Support Project WeCan 2017 Fashion Show at Lok Sin Tong YKH Secondary School. by providing merchandise and
styling advice:

(iv)  Plant over 40 trees at Kadoorie Farm:;
(v) Knit of over 410 pencil case which were donated to local and China underprivileged children; and
(vi)  Raise over $48,000 for the Community Chest Wheelock Swim for Millions, through activities including a cooking

event, charity sale, and personal sponsorships.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended
31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND TRADING OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and those of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note
28(a) to the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 131.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the Group's business in accordance with Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of
the laws of Hong Kong) as required under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited are covered in different sections of this Annual Report as set out below, which shall form an integral part of
this Directors’ Report:

(@ Review of the Group's business and analysis using key performance indicators - Chairman’s Statement (page 3)
and Management Discussion and Analysis (Section A of Other Corporate Information) (pages 4 to 5)

(b) Principal risks and uncertainties - Section M of Other Corporate Information (page 10) and Note 3 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements (pages 98 to 103)

(c) Future development in the Group's business - Chairman's Statement (page 3)

In addition, the Group's policies and performance in the area of environmental, social and governance, and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations are discussed in the Environmental. Social and Governance Report on pages 24 to 28.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in the Consolidated Income Statement on
page 71.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2018.

DONATIONS

The Company made no donations during the financial year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in share capital of the Company during the financial year are set out in Note 23 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements on page 125.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreement which may result in the Company issuing shares was entered into or existed during the
financial year.

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the financial year and up to the date of this Report are Mr. Stephen T. H. Ng,
Mr. Antonio Chan, Ms. Doreen Y. F. Lee, Mr. Eric K. K. Lo, Mr. T. Y. Ng and Mr. Paul Y. C. Tsui.

In accordance with the Company's Bye-Laws, all Directors will retire from the Board at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and. being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. None of the retiring Directors proposed for re-election

at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
employer within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the Company's business to which any subsidiaries of
the Company, the ultimate holding company of the Company or any subsidiaries of such ultimate holding company was
a party and in which a Director of the Company or any connected entities of a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial year or at any time during that financial year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the financial year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the financial year was the Company, its subsidiaries or its ultimate holding company or any subsidiaries
of that ultimate holding company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified by the Company out of
the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or
about the execution and discharge of his duties or in relation thereto including any liability incurred by him in defending
any proceeding, civil or criminal, which relate to anything done or omitted or alleged to have been done or omitted by
him and in which judgment is given in his favour (or the proceedings are otherwise disposed of without any finding or
admission of any material breach of duty on his part) or in which he is acquitted or in connection with any application
under any statute for relief from liability in respect of any such act or omission in which relief is granted to him by the
Court.

The Company has maintained directors’ liability insurance which is in force throughout the financial year and up to
the date of this report to provide appropriate insurance cover for all Directors of the Company and directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the Company
during the financial year under review.

AUDITOR

The Financial Statements now presented have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants,
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board
Kevin C. Y. Hui
Company Secretary

Hong Kong. 15 June 2018
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e
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

e
ju®
X
r:

OPINION

What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of Joyce Boutique Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
‘Group”) set out on pages 71 to 131, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Net realisable value of inventory is identified as a key audit matter in our audit, and is summarised as follows:

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Net realisable value of inventory

Refer to note 2.10 and 4(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group held inventories of HK$158
million. Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and

net realisable value ("NRV") in the consolidated financial
statements.

Management calculates the NRV at each period end based
on the estimated sell-through amount of the inventories,
which requires significant judgements and assumptions

to be made to determine the estimated sell-through
percentage, including historical experience of selling aged
products and expectation of future sales based on current
market conditions. The estimations are also subject to
uncertainty as a result of future changes of market trends,
customer demands and fashion trends.

We focused on this area because significant judgements
and assumptions are involved.

We understood and tested the controls by which
management determined the sell-through percentage
used in the calculation of NRV.

We evaluated the estimated sell-through percentage
applied by management on inventories with different
seasons based on historical sales trends and budget sales
as appropriate. Our evaluation included comparing the
overall provision percentage to other market participants,
the outcome of management's estimates in prior years and
actual sales performance subsequent to the year end. We
also evaluated the consistency of management applying
these estimates and compared them against sales budget
approved by management.

We further discussed with management to understand
the additional factors that were considered relevant
based on the current market trend and conditions that
may require adjustments to the sell-through amounts.
We independently evaluated the impact of these factors
by using our industry knowledge and sales performance
subsequent to the year end.

We further tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
inventories season and historical and post year end sales
data used in the calculation of sell-through percentage
and net realisable value against the relevant accounting
records.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the
assumption of management in determining the NRV to be
supportable by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents

of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated the Audit Committee we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Wilson Chan.
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong. 15 June 2018
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Fealmk
For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_O—)/\F=ZA=+—HILtFE
2018 2017
—O—N\&§E —O—+t%F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BiEE BT BT T
Revenue WA 5 860,701 954,368
Other income HA iz 6 37,227 41,884
Direct costs and operating expenses BEEMAREEER 7 (816,248) (906.521)
Selling and marketing expenses SHE RIEHE R 7 (39,141) (42.335)
Administrative expenses THER 7 (105,320) (91.558)
Other gains, net HFUA 8 4,290 5323
Operating loss EEEGE (58,491) (38.839)
Finance costs A& R AR 9 (11) )
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate st & N a B8R (Ei8) 17 3,111 (1.514)
Loss before income tax HIBR TS T AT ES 18 (55,391) (40,362)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfisle, (BH) 1 666 (1.492)
Loss attributable to owners ATRRELEE
of the Company (54,725) (41.854)
Loss per share SRER
- Basic and diluted —HEARREE 13 (3.4) cents{l (2.6) centsill

The notes on pages 79 to 131 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FHNF 791318 2 Wit BEr & M IS TR R -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FeTEWRE
For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_O—/\E=ZA=+—HILFE
2018 2017
—O—N#F —O—t%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Loss for the year FEBE (54,725) (41,854)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hitimauwzs (&)
Items that have been reclassified or may be PR ESLREAEETESIES
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss EaayE A
Net translation differences on foreign operations — JEIMNEE ~ & i JF =48
- Subsidiaries — B AF 8,827 (1,643)
- Associate — BN A] 71 7
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) Hitima@ls  (BR) 8,898 (1.636)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to AR RREGFREHERER
owners of the Company (45,827) (43,490)
The notes on pages 79 to 131 are an integral part of these BN E79E 1318 2 Wit R B IMERMNEEI G -

consolidated financial statements.
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mEMBARRE
As at 31 March 2018
RZO—NE=ZA=1+—HIFE
2018 2017
—O—N#§ —O—+%F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
st BT T BET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE R&E 14 45,737 61,305
Deposits, prepayments e BRNER
and other assets MEMEE 15 58,802 64,922
Interest in an associate RERE N TR 17 10,472 7.290
Financial asset at fair value through BRATFERREBERLED
profit or loss TRLEE 18 1,231 4,846
Deferred income tax assets REFRSIREE 25 6,603 7.161
122,845 145,524
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 158,026 183.187
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EmEKRERE 16 44,032 23,120
Deposits, prepayments e FBNER
and other assets REMEE 15 17,787 27425
Current income tax recoverable AHAFR SRR 2 99 3.671
Financial derivative assets PTEemMITIAEEE 19 3,081 -
Cash and cash equivalents Re KA EEEE 20 340,834 323.942
563,859 561,345
Total assets EEAE 686,704 706,869
EQUITY xS
Equity attributable to owners DNERREGER
of the Company
Share capital &N 23 162,400 162,400
Reserves i 24 321,030 366,857
Total equity B 483,430 529,257
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mEMBARRE
2018 2017
—O—N#§ —O—+%F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
o5t BT T BT IT
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Deferred income tax liabilities REFRSREE 25 - 1,211
Other non-current liabilities HEM3Emea®E 21 7,922 6.869
Financial derivative liabilities TEemTAARE 19 419 -
8,341 8,080
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables FERTE HERIE R BT = 22 56,414 53,440
Other payables and accruals E it N BRIA R EETIA R 21 131,773 112,346
Amount due to an associate ANk NEIE O] 17 6,181 3,746
Financial derivative liabilities MTESRMTAAE 19 565 -
194,933 169,532
Total liabilities BE8E 203,274 177.612
Total equity and liabilities EaRkEEARE 686,704 706,869
Net current assets RBEEFE 368,926 391.813
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBERE 491,771 537.337
The consolidated financial statements on page 71 to 131 were HRE7/IZERBIEZARAMBREACHEFEN_0—N
approved by the Board of Directors on 15 June 2018 and were FRATHRBBMRKES -
signed on its behalf.
Stephen T.H. Ng Paul Y.C. Tsui
Chairman Director
RXE B
TE EZE
The notes on pages 79 to 131 are an integral part of these HNE79E13E Z M T RERE M EHRRM BRI -

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERESRE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_O—/\F=ZA=1T—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NARRER
Exchange
Share Share Capital Contributed fluctuation  Retained Total
capital  premium surplus surplus reserve  earnings equity

Rx  ROEE  E4BR  AABR ENKBRE  RZERN  BEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTrn  ERfn  ERfn RMTR BRTn BRTn ERTx

Balance at 1 April 2017 ZO—tEmA-AER 162,400 3,728 76 139,196 6,931 216,926 529,257
Loss for the year FEES - - - - - (54,725) (54,725)
Other comprehensive income Aftrira
Net translation differences on ANEE RAFER

foreign operations

- Subsidiaries ~HEAF - - - - 8,827 - 8,827

- Associate YN - - - - 7 - 71
Total other comprehensive income Efpirahs - - - - 8,898 - 8,898
Total comprehensive income/(loss) SRAKR/ (BB - - - - 8,898 (54,725) (45,827)
Balance at 31 March 2018 —0-N\fzA=1-B&% 162,400 3,728 76 139,196 15,829 162,201 483,430
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERESRE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RERRER
Exchange
Share Share Capital Contributed ~ fluctuation ~ Retained
capital  premium surplus surplus reserve earnings  Total equity

R RDEE  AARS  BARE EXRDRE  RERN  BReE
HKS000  HKS000 ~ HKS000  HK$000 ~ HK$000 — HK$000  HK$000
A8t A%t BBt %t BT BRTR BRTx

Balance at 1 April 2016 0 ~"ENA-B&ER 162,400 3728 76 139.196 8,567 258,780 572,747

Other comprehensive (loss)/income  Ethéiz4 (5518) /K

Net translation differences on hEE ELEES:

foreign operations

- Subsidiaries -HEAR - - - - (1643) - (1643)

- Associate o =VNT - - - - 7 - 7
Total other comprehensive loss AthireBER - - - - (1,636) - (1636)
Total comprehensive loss ReBER - - - - (1.636) (41,854) (43,490)
Balance at 31 March 2017 ZO—tF=A=t—R&HR 162,400 3728 76 139,196 6931 216926 520,257
The notes on pages 79 to 131 are an integral part of these BN EB7ORIBH 2 Wik AR A SRR MG -

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_O—/\F=ZA=1T—HILFE

2018 2017
—O—N#F —O—t%F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
et BT T BETT
Cash flows from operating activities EEIBNRESRE
Cash generated from operations EEEANES @) 12,353 46,454
Interest paid ERFE (11) )
Interest received ERE 1,503 816
Income tax refunded B U EIFT1SHL 3,585 2.868
Net cash generated from EEEHEANTFHRS
operating activities 17,430 50,129
Cash flows from investing activities RETEHNRERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE  BERRE
equipment (8,934) (28.109)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment FABFTISR - 1,540
Net cash used in investing activities WEFRDAFERE (8,934) (26.569)
Net increase in cash and HeRESLZSHEEBEREM
cash equivalents 8,496 23,560
Effect of foreign exchange b W R F R
rate changes, net 8,396 (1,285)
Cash and cash equivalents at REPzREMREEEIER
beginning of the year 323,942 301,667
Cash and cash equivalents at RERZREREESEHEER
end of the year 20 340,834 323,942
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NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

The notes on pages 79 to 131 are an integral part of these

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

JOYCE

RERETRER

FmERERERMEE

Reconciliation of operating loss to cash generated from (a) EEFRELETDEEINRESHIE
operations
2018 2017
—O—N\#F —O—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Operating loss EEEE (58,491) (38.839)
Interest income FBEWA (1,503) (816)
Depreciation of property, M - BERREBITE
plant and equipment 21,667 25,627
Fair value loss on financial asset at BRATEBRBERCENSR
fair value through profit or loss BEZAVEERE 3,615 914
Net fair value gains from financial derivatives #1448 T A2 A EEFF 5 (2,097) -
Loss on disposals of property. LEYE - BEMEE BB
plant and equipment - 494
Reversal of provision for onerous contract 581 & 492 B s 01 (5,808) (6,237
Impairment charge on property, Y% - HE REERE
plant and equipment 3,266 2,089
Operating loss before working CEECEHH T EEBE
capital changes (39,351) (16.768)
Decrease in inventories FEZRL 25,161 59,5642
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 REAEWARIE
other receivables (#&hn), (20,912) 155
Decrease in deposits, e BRNEAREMEEZ
prepayments and other assets R 15,758 18.785
Increase in trade and bills payables JERTE 58R18 R R IR 238 00 2,974 12,035
Increase/(decrease) in other payables EfbEIRIBERERTIEE 2
and accruals =, i) 26,288 (29.120)
Increase in amount due to an associate FERTBS A IR IE 2 35 0 2,435 1.825
Cash generated from operations EEEANE D 12,353 46,454

consolidated financial statements.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M IRRME

GENERAL INFORMATION

Joyce Boutique Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the "Group”) are principally engaged
in the sales of designer fashion garments, cosmetics and
accessories.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda. The
Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 June
2018.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied for all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622
of the laws of Hong Kong). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and financial derivative assets and
liabilities.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies.
The assumptions and estimates that are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in Note 4.

—RER

Joyce Boutique Holdings Limited (&2 &]) K &
MEBAR(FE SR EBNERERE - (Lith
KIS E

AARA—RPARETMRIHBER AR - HiF
3t == &= 7 72 Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda © KA RIH B AN E
AT SMBRATIASE M5 -

IEREMBRRENR_ZO—N\FATHREES

TESFHE
REAGEEHHRREMNEEZSAHREN T
X o BRBAHBI  MEBREMZBOMAEFE
NERER -

21 REEE
K EUERERESEBRE BT AL EMR
BB RS LB FIR BHEH (BB ABIE
BR2E )RR TMRE o TR W IME THILE
SRAERER - IR AT EBIBIBRR
FERNeREENBERTECRMEENERE
R EGMIELERT »

RETT AU EAMERE M RA T EEA
ATRRE G - ETREEEEEREA
AREBN G BREDITEELAE - FR
HiR BB HRRBEABRKMGRE -
FEMT T4 4R ER -
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBmERMET
2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EFESTBERGE)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 HEEUEBE(E)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) BEEFBHIFERRBEITERIBEET

Group

The following new and amended standards
have been published and are mandatory for
the Group's accounting periods beginning on 1

ORI R IR TR M IERT B AR 3
EREE—O—+tFA—BHRNE
STEARRIAERR - BIRAT A ACER B R o

April 2017, but are not currently relevant to the

Group.
HKAS 7 (Amendments)  Disclosure Initiative EBSTERE7HR HETE
(BFTA)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)  Recognition of BEGRTERIFEY, HAREHBERE
Deferred Tax CHE) RIEEATS
Assets for BiE
Unrealised Losses
Annual Improvements  Disclosure to Interest ZO—mEZO—X WERHEMER
to HKFRSs 2014- in Other Entities FEAVBREE ZEn
2016 Cycle: HKFRS 12 Az BoE - BAM
Amendments TEERE AR 1295
1EETAR

The amendments do not have significant impact 1BRTEI R E R & 8 R AR
on the Group's results and financial position. s ERERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE SRR MR
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EEEHBEGE)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 HEEMEE(E)
(b) New and amended standards which have been (b)
issued but are not effective for the Group's
financial year beginning 1 April 2017 and have V&

not been early adopted by the Group:

JOYCE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BARUTH 2%
IR ST

T 5127 B R 3R B 9 5 T E 48 T
% e EE — O— 4 A — AR
SHERRISE R AR - TR R
2R -

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BGRB8 (15T A)
HKAS 40 (Amendments)
BBSEERIFEI05R (BT A)
HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

BB SRS LR B 2R (EETA)
HKFRS 4 (Amendment)

FRPHREEREAR(ERTA)

HKFRS 9

BB IwELERER

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendment)

EAUBHEEAFI0RT
BB HHERIF26% (55T 4)
HKFRS 15

BBV IwEERE155%
HKFRS 15 (Amendments)

BB B MELRF155HE(EFTA)

HKFRS 16
BBMBGREERB165
HKFRS 17

AV B ISR E175
HK (IFRIC) - Int 22

ER(ERAGHEREZEE)
B F225
HK (IFRIC) - Int 23

HE(ERMEHRERERES
2235

Annual Improvement Project

FEBCERR

Management is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of these new and
amended standards and interpretations. The

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

REERAINEEPE Y RAER

Transfers of Investment Property

AW &%

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

By BER 2 RS2 D BERTE

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

EE B IS R E 45 RIR & 40 IEMA
BEMBHREERFEIR SR T A

Financial Instruments

EMTHE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

HEEHEBENRRAEDE HD
BEHERHH

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

R E&HME

Clarifications to HKFRS 15

BAEUBHRELERIFISH 2 EE

Leases

HE

Insurance Contracts

RbpE &

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

HNEERZ ZANFAM B

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments
BRIBFI1S T 2 THETE

Annual Improvement 2015-2017 Cycle
ZO—REZO—t#F
BN REER 2 o

Group will adopt these new standards and
interpretations when they become effective.

JOYCE BOUTIQUE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1 January 2018
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards which have
been issued but are not effective for the
Group's financial year beginning 1 April 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued):

HKFRS 9. 'Financial instruments’

The new standard addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities, introduces

new rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

The Group has assessed the effects of applying
the new standard on the consolidated financial
statements and has not identified any material
impact to the Group.

The Group will apply the new rules
retrospectively from 1 April 2018, with the
practical expedients permitted under the
standard. Comparatives for 2017 will not be
restated.

The new impairment model requires the
recognition of impairment provisions based

on expected credit losses (ECL) rather than
only incurred credit losses as is the case under
HKAS 39. The Group has not yet undertaken

a detailed assessment of how its impairment
provisions would be affected by the new
model.

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group's disclosures
about its financial instruments particularly in the
year of the adoption of the new standard.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards which have
been issued but are not effective for the
Group's financial year beginning 1 April 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued):

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for

the recognition of revenue. This will replace
HKAS 18 which covers contracts for goods and
services and HKAS 11 which covers construction
contracts. The new standard is based on the
principle that revenue is recognised when
control of a good or service transfers to a
customer. The standard permits either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption.

Management is currently assessing the effects
of applying the new standard on the Group's
financial statements and has identified the
following area that are likely to be affected:

rights of return - HKFRS 15 requires
separate presentation on the statement
of financial position of the right to recover
the goods from the customer and the
refund obligation.

At this stage, the Group is not able to estimate
the impact of the new rules on the Group's
financial statements. The Group will perform
assessments of the impact in more detail over
the next twelve months.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. At this
stage. the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

2

TEEBERE)
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards which have
been issued but are not effective for the
Group's financial year beginning 1 April 2017
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued):

HKFRS 16, eases’

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the statement of financial
position, as the distinction between operating
and finance leases is removed. Under the new
standard, an asset (the right to use the leased
item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognised. The only exceptions are short-term
and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for the Group's operating leases.
As at the reporting date, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments
of HK$512.827.000, see note 26. The Group
estimates those related to payments for
short-term or low value leases which will
be recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss are insignificant.

The Group has not yet assessed what other
adjustments, if any, are necessary for example
because of the change in the definition of

the lease term and the different treatment

of variable lease payments, extension

and termination options and of sub-lease
accounting. It is therefore not yet possible to
estimate the amount of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities that will have to be recognised
on adoption of the new standard and how

this may affect the Group's profit or loss and
classification of cash flows going forward.

The new standard is mandatory for financial
years commencing on or after 1 January 2019.
At this stage. the Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective date.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REIERRME
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EEEFHBEE)
2.2 Subsidiaries 22 KMIEBAT
2.2.1 Consolidation 221 ZREkRE

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

(@)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of

any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in

a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest's proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured

to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised within ‘other
gains/(losses), net' in the consolidated
income statement.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M IRRME

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised

at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value

of the contingent consideration that

is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 in
profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the fair value of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the

fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
When necessary, amounts reported

by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group's accounting
policies.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions -
that is. as transactions with the owners in
their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group

has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Interest in an associate

is accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor's share of the profit or loss of the investee
after the date of acquisition. The Group's interest

in an associate includes goodwill identified on
acquisition.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 Associate (Continued)

24

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in

other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group's share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless

it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the
case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to ‘share of loss of an associate’
in the consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor's interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associate are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-makers. The chief
operating decision-makers, who are responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance

of the operating segments, have been identified
collectively as the top management that makes
strategic decisions. The executive directors are the
top management of the Group.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the *functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company's
functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except when
deferred in other comprehensive income as
qualifying cash flow hedges.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have

a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

On consolidation, currency translation
differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is partially disposed of or sold,
exchange differences that were recorded

in equity are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

2
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REIERRME
2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EEEIBEE)
2.6 Property, plant and equipment 26 YE - BEREE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the costs of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Over the lease term
31to 6 years
4 years

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

The assets' residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting date.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes

of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at

the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging
activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and

are subsequently remeasured at their fair value.

The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item
being hedged. Derivatives that are not designated as
hedging instruments are classified as financial assets
or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group did not designate any
derivatives as hedging instruments.

Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss
Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss
represented the call and put options. The financial
asset is initially recognised at fair value on the date
the options were entered into and is subsequently
remeasured at the fair value. Gain or loss arising from
change in fair value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10

211

212

213

2.14

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise for resale and are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on a weighted average basis and
includes all costs of purchases, costs of conversion,
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses. Costs of inventories include the transfer
from hedging reserve of any gains/losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges relating to purchases of
merchandises for resale.

Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of receivables. The
amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the assets is reduced through the use of an
allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against consolidated income
statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturity of 3
months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M IRRME

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised directly in other
comprehensive income or equity. In this case, tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
equity respectively.

(a) Current tax
The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the date of statement
of financial position in the countries where
the Company, its subsidiaries and associate
operate and generate taxable income,
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the statement of financial position
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred tax asset is realised or the
deferred tax liability is settled.

(b)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised

to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(b) Deferred tax (Continued)

(c)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and an associate except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal of
the temporary difference for associates. Only
when there is an agreement in place that gives
the Group the ability to control the reversal of
the temporary difference in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liability in relation to
taxable temporary differences arising from

the associate’s undistributed profits is not
recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associates only
to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A VBRI
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2
2.16 Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlements (a)

(b)

(c)

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the date of consolidated
statement of financial position.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Bonus plan (b)
Provision for bonus plan is recognised where

contractually obliged or where there is a

past practice that has created a constructive

obligation.

Pension schemes (c)
The Group operates the following principal
defined contribution pension schemes:

Occupational retirement schemes
Contributions to the schemes are expensed
as incurred and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave

the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

Mandatory provident funds

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are
charged to the consolidated income statement
when incurred.

Others

The Group also participates in the employee
pension schemes operated by the municipal
governments of various cities in the People's
Republic of China ("PRC"). The municipal
governments are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired
employees. The only obligation of the Group is
to pay the ongoing required contribution under
these schemes. The contributions are charged
to the consolidated income statement as
incurred.

Under these plans, the Group has no legal or
constructive obligation to make further payment
once the required contributions have been paid.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as
incurred.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Employee benefits (Continued)
(d) Long service payments

217

218

The Group's net obligation in respect of
amounts payable on cessation of employment
in certain circumstances under the employment
law of the respective countries in which the
Group operates is the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their
services in the current and prior periods.

Long service payments are assessed using

the projected unit credit method. The cost of
providing the long service payment liabilities is
charged to the consolidated income statement
so as to spread the cost over the service lives
of employees in accordance with the advice of
the actuaries.

Long service payments are discounted to
determine the present value of obligation

and reduced by entitlement accrued under
the Group's defined contribution plans that
are attributable to contributions made by the
Group. Actuarial gains and losses are charged
or credited to equity in the statement of
comprehensive income. Past service costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a

present legal or constructive obligation as a result

of past events; it is probable that an outflow of

resources will be required to settle the obligation;

and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provision are not recognised for future operating
losses. The Group makes provision on onerous

contracts when the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under a contract exceed the economic

benefits expected to be received from it.

Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale

of goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of value-

added tax. returns, rebates. discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE IR ME
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EFEEFHEEE)
2.18 Revenue recognition (Continued) 218 WARER(E)
(a) Sales of goods - retail (a) Em#H&E—-ZFE&
Sales of goods are recognised when a group EmHEEAREARRMETHEER
company sells a product to the customer. Retail BHER - TEHE—MUBRENERF
sales are usually settled in cash or by credit AR o
card.
Sales of goods that result in award credits HEmiHEmES =P ZEES WA
for customers are accounted for as multiple FUBEZEHEENRFH AR Bk
element revenue transactions and the fair value EREHEN N TEEECIHEEmMAT
of the consideration received or receivable RTHEBES 2 Eo# - H#GER
is allocated between the goods sold and the BoZHEDNSBRANTEREEZE
award credits granted. The consideration BRESARREmN N TEETE -
allocated to the award credits is measured DEERBBES 2 HEEERHEERS
by reference to their fair values, taking into RIAEHERARA  TEELEAR - £
the account the fair value of the products for 1EENIE 5 B E s H IR R AU -
which award credits could be redeemed. Such
consideration is not recognised as revenue at
the time of the initial sale transaction, but is
deferred and recognised as revenue upon the
expiration or redemption of award credits.
(b) Interest income (b) FEWzm
Interest income is recognised on a time- F B TR R L BIE R E R R = 0E
proportion basis using the effective interest TR o
method.
(c) Rental income (c) MzWzm
Rental income is recognised on a straight- HeWam A BEREIEEEHEEER
line accrual basis over the terms of lease HANER ©
agreement.
(d) Management fee and commission income (d) EEERMFALNZ
Management fee and commission income is EERERAWSRTRMRERIZZS
recognised in the accounting period in which 5T EARRIRERR o
the services are rendered.
2.19 Operating leases 219 KREHE

2.20

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Receipts or payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
paid to lessee or received from the lessor) are
recognised as income or expense in the consolidated
income statement on the straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Dividend distribution 2.20
Dividend distribution to the Company'’s shareholders

is recognised as a liability in the Group's and

Company's financial statements in the period in

which the dividends are approved by the Company's

Directors or shareholders, where appropriate.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financialrisk factors
The Group's activities expose it mainly to foreign
exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash
flow interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk
management programme seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial

performance. It is the policy of the Group not to enter

into derivative transactions for speculative purposes.

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and
the PRC, and is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the Euro and United

States dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from

future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations.

At 31 March 2018, if Euro had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against Hong Kong
dollars with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$10,666,000 lower/higher
(2017: HK$1,031,000 lower/higher) mainly as
a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
settlement of purchases and forward foreign
exchange contract.

At 31 March 2018, if Euro had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against Renminbi with all
other variables held constant, post-tax loss
for the year would have been approximately
HK$89.000 lower/higher (2017: HK$111,000
lower/higher) mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on settlement of
purchases.

The Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between Hong Kong dollars
and United States dollars to be insignificant as
Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars
are pegged and hence, foreign currency risk is
considered insignificant.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018

- 08 -

3

SRR ER

31 ¢@EREZ
AEBZEBKTERIINIERR  ZEE
B omBESRBR LIRS RENRER 2
2. REFNEBERRAREEFISREEN
BEAEBPBERBRNBETFZE - K&
BB ETMESRIENTETRER S -

(i) SMEEEE
AEBEERFERPEEE - AR
ZRAREBELNINERR - MER
MBI RS TTHIRR o SMERR K B
AREER S - CHEABENABAR
BINEIFHFRE -

RZO—NE=A=+—H ' H4ETH
BEEFHES% - MIrAHEMAE
HIFTE S BIBRBEEEBRERD 1E
078 #10.666,00070( —O—+tF : F
b AN RE1.031,0007T) C FERA A
HEERBRRIINESDFTEENER
Weas,B518 o

RZO—NE=A=+—0H ' HHTH
AR E FHES% - MrAHMRA
ZHFTE - BIBRTREEEERLD, 1
MNFERES9.000TT(=ZO—+4F : Wb/
HANEEA111,0007T) - EBAALER
REFTEE £ MIE UGS, B8 -

BB LRI Y - MARER RS
TUMZETTRE REEBNELNR - HIMNERR
HIK -



3

JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(ii)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, which

is the risk that a counterparty will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk
is managed on a group basis and individual
basis. Credit risk arises mainly from deposits
with banks, rental deposits, as well as credit
exposures to wholesale and retail customers,
including outstanding receivables.

Impairment provisions are made for losses that
have been incurred at the date of statement of
financial position. The Group limits its exposure
to credit risk by rigorously selecting the
counterparties including the deposits-takers
and debtors and by diversification. Deposits

are placed only with major and sizeable banks
approved by the Board from time to time and
there was no significant concentration risk to

a single counterparty. The Group mitigates its
exposure to risks relating to trade receivable

by its established procedures in granting credit
only to customers with sound credit track
records. Sales to retail customers are settled in
cash or using major credit cards. No credit limits
were exceeded during the reporting period, and
management does not expect any losses from
non-performance by these counterparties.

As at 31 March 2018, the financial assets of the
Group that were exposed to credit risk and their
maximum exposure were as follows:

3

SREMRER(E)
31 SREREEE)
(i) EERE
REFEAZEZERR  MEERBRA

B RBEXATE 'JHHH/TAZJ—LEM :.,\J—L
rir e M ER EEEE - FERRK
Efifﬂ?m MERTS - ARBLHE R

EEPMAX 2 EE(BREREERE
HKEEIE)

AREEREELEZERME - B&1E
R ERE - AEBEEBBES T
(BREXFRAREBEEA) LB
RETEE 2 EERBRERR - FREFR
REFSTHEHL T ERARER
17 HEE-HFHTEEREHE
B - REEAEREERABRIER
R EPETEREZEFREERIEA
A BB XBRIREZ B - HT
EEPETZHEN MR SHTEER
REN - RERPALEBBEER
B meEEEY TN ERE TR EY
FHRREERMEERZEE

RZO—N\F=A=+—H ' x5EE
AREERRzBEERGBIGE
EZ&=RARNAT

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
—O—-NF=A=+—H —O—+f=A=+—H
Carrying Carrying
amount in amount in
statement Maximum statement Maximum
of financial ~ exposure to of financial exposure to
position credit risk position credit risk
REBMRRER BRIZEE RUBKRRIR BEARZERS
ZERHEE FERR Z EREE FERR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BT
Financial assets: MBEE
Cash and cash equivalents  BR& KReEEIER 340,834 339,785 323,942 322,906
Trade and other receivables &% kEEYRIEA 44,032 44,032 23.120 23.120
Deposits and other assets & REMEE 73111 73,111 90,049 90,049
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk

JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M IRRME

TREREE(E)

31 ZREBRERE(GE)

(iii) HEEZEE

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be
available to meet liabilities as and when they
fall due, and it results from amount and maturity
mismatches of assets and liabilities. Prudent
liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash, the availability of funding from
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market
positions. The Group employs projected

cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by
forecasting the amount of cash required and
monitoring the working capital of the Group to
ensure that all liabilities due and known funding
requirements could be met. In addition, banking
facilities have been put in place for contingency
purposes. The Group had aggregate borrowing
facilities of approximately HK$254,800,000

as at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$254,800,000).
Borrowing facilities utilised as at 31 March 2018
amounted to approximately HK$10,775,000
(2017: HK$11,646,000). The banking facilities
were secured by corporate guarantees from
the Company.

The table below analyses the contractual
maturities of the Group's financial liabilities.

REBECRBBE S REENDIHAER
2Rk REERGBGzSBEMFHE
FFTER - BIERDESEBEIE B IE4E
BRANRE - miﬁmaﬁ GE@
REATENES REENERTE
@o$%§@%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
B}E® ﬁ%ﬁ%%%%ﬁé@ﬁ
&ﬁﬁﬁﬁlz%géé u%%

N ERSEERENEST K - k
SN SRITIEEE EEERARE - R
O—N\FE=ZA=+—H8 " K&E®E 2T
A EMRREY) BB 2548000007
(ZO—+%F : BH¥2548000007T) °
RZO—N\E=A=+—H " 28BN
EEEEN ABE10,7750007T (=0
— 44 B#E11,646,0007T) © HRITE
BT 2 b EERIERE

TRETASESRAEENA O
H o

Less than 1 year

—FLTF

2018 2017

—O—-N\#& —O—k#F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Trade and bills payable ENE 5 REBRENER 56,414 53,440
Other payables and accruals ﬁ{ﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ 5] 103,062 81592
Amount due to an associate JET B A RIFRIA 6,181 3.746
Total 1Az 165,657 138,778
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

3

TREREE(E)
31 emEAREREGE)

(iii) Liquidity risk (Continued) Gii) EELEE(E)
The table below analyses the Group's derivative TRIODBRBRMBRARNEERES
financial instruments which will be settled on AREAE &R N AR R ER E G AR E
a gross basis into relevant maturity groupings BEBZITE ST BIZBREIHI4E T
based on the remaining period from the date of O o RAPFERESE RS LRI
statement of financial position to the contractual WEME °
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.
Less than Over
1year 1year Total
—F LT —FHE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T
At 31 March 2018 —O—/\%=A=+—H
Forward foreign exchange RERINE
contracts - not for hedge BH—TRELH
Inflows A 153,057 39,497 192,554
OQutflows D (150,541) (39,916) (190,457)
There was no derivative financial instrument as RZO—+F=ZA=+—BUEL/IT
at 31 March 2017. £TH-
Cash flow interest rate risk (iv) BHE2nEFFEE

(iv)

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group's income and operating

cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates, except for the
interest income derived from bank deposits.

As at 31 March 2018, if interest rates on the
bank deposits had been 10 basis points (2017:
10 basis points) higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, pre-tax loss for the
year would have been HK$341,000 lower/
higher (2017: HK$323,000 lower/higher), mainly
as a result of higher/lower interest income on
bank deposits. Apart from the bank deposits,
the Group has no significant interest bearing
assets or liabilities.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBmERMET
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 TREBREE(E)
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EcEREE

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to AEENESBERECR - 2RESEEEE

safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going g DAZ%H&?TET?E@?ﬁﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂhfﬁ%k

concern in order to provide returns for shareholders HAE - AREFRENENEELREE

and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain BN o

an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of

capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and 7R ER B FE AR E HAAR T&'@ff@é{zﬁ & J1sk

manages its capital structure to ensure optimal ENHEENEAEERRRERL R AR

capital structure and shareholder returns, taking o AEEZEEMNAEE  AREHER

into consideration the future capital requirements éf$ﬁﬁ7ﬁ£ﬁiéf$§ﬁ$ - BRI RTEERC BF e

of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and N EHRERER  HHEARAZLE

projected profitability, projected operating cash HISRIRIR A S o

flows, projected capital expenditures and projected

strategic investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, BTSSR ERS % REB A REEH

the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid i’%iﬁ%ﬂx%ﬂ’] RESHE MRREFEE

to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue & - T%ﬁﬂx‘%ﬁ%éﬁ% °

new shares or sell assets.

3.3 Fair value estimation 33 ATEME

The table below analyses financial instruments MREABEEHEAFEIGZEMITA

carried at fair value, by valuation method. The BTN - TRZRRMAELT

different levels have been defined as follows:

Levell - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F—E — HBREZEENEBBEERIKERE
markets for identical assets or TS HRE (R FHEK) -
liabilities.

Level2 - Inputs other than quoted prices E-E - RTE—EFBENRE
included within level 1 that are Hh - HEENMABENIEHER
observable for the asset or liability, R H by A - Al A E (B
either directly (that is, as prices) or Blan B ) kEE (AR E B
indirectly (that is, derived from prices). &) °

Level3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are F= — BESBELIFKEEE
not based on observable market data TSR E A (B FER B
(that is, unobservable inputs). A o

The following table presents the Group's financial THRETAEENMBEERABER =

assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value —N\F=ZA=+—HENATFE-

as at 31 March 2018.

Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-FE %-F $=E k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT T

Assets BE

Financial asset at fair value Hz A FEE BIRRCRE

through profit or loss SREE - - 1,231 1,231
Financial derivative assets f/TEiFﬁEﬁF - 3,081 - 3,081
- 3,081 1,231 4,312

Liabilities aE
Financial derivative liabilities TEERERE - 984 - 984
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M IRRME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group's financial
assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value
as at 31 March 2017.

3 SRIEREE(E)

33

ARER[E(E)
THRETAEENMBEERABIE=O
—+tF=ZA=1+—H:ENRTFE-

Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ E-E E=E k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BT
Assets BE
Financial asset at fair value ROHERBERTEN
through profit or loss SREE - - 4,846 4,846
The fair values of financial instruments that are not BEEERMZEENSRIANQTET
traded in an active market are determined by using FREERMEE  AERNRENATHE
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques MHEE - FERBEEOBTMHT - 0
maximise the use of observable market data where AE -SRI ANATEMRNMEERE
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity ARAIEEEE - AZemITAIAZ _E -
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based IN—IE 3L % TAE K AN FERIB I BR & T 5
on observable market data. the instrument is HiE - AZEeRITAIAE=E - RIELR
included in level 3. Binomial model was adopted SHEREF A TFEZEERA T ZEAEL
to measure the net fair values of the call and put IRAFRZAEE ARNREN A TS
options which required the assessment of the fair BE -BEARNRENATTEEEREN
market values of the equity interest in an associate. RBARGEEMBBERESRERAF 2
Fair market values of the equity interest was B BB e mEMELRTE
determined by the income approach with the use
of free cash flows to equity in discounted cash flow
method.
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets, HRNBERRANIE  AEBCREERE
including cash and cash equivalents, trade and other LekReFEER B REMEBYWER
receivables and deposits and other assets; and the B FlekAMEE  mMemBEeEEN
Group's financial liabilities. including trade and bills BHRERENERE - B EARE R EST
payables. other payables and accruals and amount BEAREMNEEARFKIBZREEREIR
due to an associate, approximate their fair values FHEEE ©
due to their short maturities.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4 BARETHETRHIER

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
are based on historical experience and other factors,

and

including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

fAEt A BT @ B - WIRERB T &SR EAD
HZETHE - BREARBIER THREERKREMS
BEIRIEA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Provision for inventories

The Group makes provision for inventories based
on an assessment of the net realisable value of
inventories. Provision for inventories is recorded
where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying cost of inventories will not be fully
realised. The quantification of inventory provisions
requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the outcomes are different from the original
estimates, such differences will impact the carrying
value of inventories and provisions for inventories
in the years in which such estimates have been
changed.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations
or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations
require the use of judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area of
asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether
an event has occurred that may indicate that the
related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the
higher of fair value less costs to sell and net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset in the business;
(iii) the selection of the most appropriate valuation
technique. e.g. the market approach, the income
approach, as well as a combination of approaches,
including the adjusted net asset method; and (iv)

the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and

as a result affect the Group's financial condition and
results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting
future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to
take an impairment charge to the income statement.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)
(c) Income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred tax assets and taxation in the periods in
which such estimate is changed.

(d) Fair value of financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss
The fair value of a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss that is not traded in an active market
is determined by using valuation techniques, such
as discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
models. The fair value derived from these valuation
techniques is based on a number of assumptions.
Any changes in these assumptions will impact the
fair value determined and the amount recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

(e) Financial derivative assets
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at their fair values.
The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item
being hedged. Derivatives that are not designated as
hedging instruments are classified as financial assets
or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group did not designate any
derivatives as hedging instruments.

4
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE IR ME
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARDHER
The Group is principally engaged in sales of designer AEEBTFTBERELEEE  (binh MECHHEE - F
fashion garments, cosmetics and accessories. Revenue A AFERAT -
recognised during the year are as follows:
2018 2017
—O—N\#&E —O—t#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Sale of goods BEmiHE 860,701 954,368
The Group determines its operating segments based on SECRECEIRERZL ARG REEIERRD
the reports reviewed by the management who makes WMEETLEDE -

strategic decisions.

The management assesses the Group's business by ERE AR AEREER - MEERARS
geographical location. The reportable operating segments mEHBoMREEE - RRIKREEREAM TS
identified are Hong Kong. Mainland China and other

markets.

Segment loss represents the loss incurred by each DEEBIEZ DS BIERTREER fR
segment before finance costs, tax and share of profit/(loss) ARG E AR AR (B1R) - WALt 8RR
of an associate. This is the measurement basis reported MEREERAEE R IEREDHREBZA -

to the management for the purpose of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance.

An analysis of the Group's reportable segment revenue AR ERFNIRMIN D EB M S S5 A A K& E
and operating loss by geographical location is as follows: ERAMnT
2018
—0-n&
Hong Kong PRC Others Total
i i Hits k]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BRI BETR

Revenue WA 763,608 90,681 6,412 860,701
Operating loss E¥EE (50,658) (2,437) (5,396) (58,491)
Finance costs “ﬂ BN (11)
Share of profit of an associate BIKEE - YNEIRF 3111
Loss before income tax PR AT 1R (55,391)
Income tax credit FrieHife 666
Loss attributable to owners of ARRRFELEE

the Company (54,725)
Other segment information Hith oy EDE
Segment capital expenditures DEPEAM T 7,328 1,606 - 8,934
Segment depreciation of property, D ¥¥% - BE

plant and equipment REREIE 17,697 3,390 580 21,667
Segment impairment charge of DEYE - BE

property, plant and equipment KREEERE 1,697 - 1,569 3,266
Segment (utilisation of provision for)/ o2& (B#EEM),/

provision for inventories B (18,139) (7,148) 306 (24,981)
Segment reversal of provision for D EEREIES 4

onerous contract AR B - (5,808) - (5,808)

Note that all the revenue is to external customers. ’ FIBWR AR INAZ S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M IRRME

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
The management manages the assets from geographic
location perspective. Assets of reportable segments
exclude interest in an associate, current income tax
recoverable and deferred income tax assets, of which
are managed on a central basis. Liabilities of reportable
segments exclude amount due to an associate and
deferred income tax liabilities.

An analysis of the Group's reportable segment assets by
geographical location is as follows:

5 WARDBER(E)
EEENREZ AEREEDFEE - BRARS D
HMOBENBRERRABTRNNE LR RNER - A
HIFS N R R MELEMSHEE - ARmE D N
BETBEENEEQRFEMELEMSRER

BT EELENRL NS BRI HEBRSEH
HEEIRT -

2018
—O—N\&E

Hong Kong PRC Others Total

B e Hith FLE ]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T BT T BET T

Segment assets DEEE 536,736 120,238 12,556 669,530
Unallocated: ROBLEE -

Interest in an associate A ialNE o 10,472

Current income tax recoverable RHAFRIS R R 99

Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTREE 6,603

Total assets BEBT 686,704

An analysis of the Group's reportable segment liabilities
by geographical location is as follows:

SR EMRE NS BT BB BERES
HAFEFINMT

2018
—O—-N\&

Hong Kong PRC Others Total

BB HE Hitr k]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BET T BET T BT

Segment liabilities AHEE 163,445 32,160 1,488 197,093
Unallocated: KOBAE

Amount due to an associate FERTHE & A RIFUIA 6,181

Total liabilities afEesE 203,274
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FREMBmERMET
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WARSDH ER(E)
An analysis of the Group's reportable segment revenue ﬁ—r$’E@ O—+HF NI D EMmEI D B A
and operating loss by geographical location during 2017 is BEEBY MO
as follows:
2017
ZO—kF
Hong Kong PRC Others Total
5% H Hith Gk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
Revenue A 817,002 130,242 7.124 954,368
Operating loss EEER (31,778) (3.674) (3.387) (38,839
Finance costs BB (9)
Share of loss of an associate FTib B & A RlE1E (1514)
Loss before income tax RERIEE (40,362)
Income tax expense FTiSHiE A (1.492)
Loss attributable to owners of NERRFE(LEE
the Company (41,854)
Other segment information HiHHpER
Segment capital expenditures DEEARMF X 32,834 8,197 55 41,086
Segment depreciation of property,  D¥#% - BE
plant and equipment REEIE 18,619 6.377 631 25,627
Segment impairment charge of “‘B%% =
property, plant and equipment BERE 221 1.868 - 2,089
Segment (utilisation of provision for)/ ’\*Bff(ﬁéﬁ@ﬁﬁ)/
provision for inventories i (8.835) (308) 438 (8.705)
Segment reversal of provision for DEEEEEL
onerous contract IS - (6.237) - (6.237)
Note that all the revenue is to external customers. ’ FrEMARRINRE ©
The management manages the assets from geographic BEEREENME AEREESBEE - BERED
location perspective. Assets of reportable segments HMEETBREPREENNEE ARNESR - K
exclude interest in an associate, current income tax BRFT1S TR o SR IE 1S ffdé{? BRAmE DA
recoverable and deferred income tax assets, of which BETBEEMNEE AR FIEMELEFSHEE

are managed on a central basis. Liabilities of reportable
segments exclude amount due to an associate and
deferred income tax liabilities.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBmERMET
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WARSDH aME)
An analysis of the Group's reportable segment assets by BEAREE—O—+F AR HmEI S AR
geographical location during 2017 is as follows: HRESHEEIMT -
2017
ZO—t#F
Hong Kong PRC Others Total
B H Hith G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT T
Segment assets NEVEE 593,139 83,524 12,084 688,747
Unallocated: ROBLEE :
Interest in an associate NG o 7.290
Current income tax recoverable REAFEHE R 3671
Deferred income tax assets BILEFSHERE 7.161
Total assets BEETE 706,869
An analysis of the Group's reportable segment liabilities BEAREE—O—+FARMESHmEIHHEHA
by geographical location during 2017 is as follows: WEHMBEBEIMAT ¢
2017
ZO—kF
Hong Kong PRC Others Total
B HE Hth Gk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETT
Segment liabilities HERE 123,704 47597 1,354 172.655
Unallocated: IAolasE
Amount due to an associate F’EH Bt & N RIRIE 3.746
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFSHAE 1211
Total liabilities BfERR 177,612
Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and br& T ARG EENINY REFE EiRi
deferred income tax assets are analysed by geography as BEnT
follows:
2018 2017
—O—N\#F —O—t%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Hong Kong EE 41,483 55,697
PRC i 4,254 5.608
45,737 61,305
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JOYCE

FE IR ME
OTHER INCOME 6  HftlsE
2018 2017
—O—N\E —O—+t%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest income FEME 1,503 816
Management fee income BRI 1,301 1527
Consignment commission FiEAe 1,473 627
Rental income e W e 32,686 33,182
Store handover fee income P IERS 2 AR s - 5,500
Sample and sundry sales SRR E 264 232
37,227 41,884
EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BAEE
2018 2017
—O—N\E —O—t%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Cost of inventories FERAR 474,818 498577
Utilisation of provision for impairment of FEREDH
inventories (24,981) (8.705)
449,837 489,872
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BB RREITE (KMiE14)
equipment (Note 14) 21,667 25,627
Impairment charge on property, M - WE MR ERE(HREL4)
plant and equipment (Note 14) 3,266 2.089
Operating lease rentals in respect of T RBFREHERS
land and buildings
- minimum lease payments — &EMSFRK 215,078 251,685
- contingent rents — S AMES 17,314 26,657
Auditor's remuneration ZEREN BN & 802 1157
Loss on disposals of property. HEME - BER
plant and equipment HAEEE - 494
Net exchange losses/(gains) bE S &R, (BRI FH 5,371 (2.631)
Staff costs (including directors’ and chief BIKA(BEZEER
executive's remuneration (Note 10)) =AREREANEME —HFE10)
Wages and salaries T & M 5 150,958 145,529
Pension costs - defined contribution RIRNE A — e KRETE
schemes 7,493 8,997
158,451 154,526
Other expenses Hih&H 88,923 90,938
960,709 1,040,414

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018

- 110 -




JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBmERMET
OTHER GAINS, NET 8  HMFWA
2018 2017
—O—N\F —O—t#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Fair value loss on financial asset at fair value AT EBBIERTCENESMEEY
through profit or loss (Note 18) AEBEFTEELS) (3,615) (914)
Reversal of provision for onerous contract BREEEH 2 BEE R 5,808 6.237
Net fair value gains from financial derivatives — $TASB T EZ AFERFFEE 2,097 -
4,290 5,323
FINANCE COSTS 9 BEMRK
2018 2017
—O—N\#F —O—t#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Interest on bank overdrafts RITEREZHFE 11 9
BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 10 EERSHEBAENGZRER
MANAGEMENT
(a) Directors' and chief executive's emoluments (a) ESBRTHBERMS
Pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies RIRE BN ARG (6225 ) F3831% - AR]
Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies (Disclosure of (BRERESTmER)ROI($E622GE) & £
Information about Benefit of Directors) Regulation RA B#EZE-ZO—N\F=A=1+—HILFE
(Cap. 622G) and the Listing Rules, the emoluments NEEERITEREZENMES 50T -
paid or payable to every Director and the Chief
Executive for the year ended 31 March 2018 are as
follows:
Discretionary
bonuses
Salaries, and/or
allowances performance- Pension
and benefits related scheme 2018
Name Fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
FEMR/
e 2 RREE Bife —0-N\%
2% kA RENEF MENTEA SHEIfE am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BETR BETT BET T
Director B
Mr. Antonio Chan* REZLE 55 - - - 55
Mr. Lo Kai Kin* BRI 45 - - - 45
Mr. Ng Tze Yuen* REREE 45 - - - 45
Chief executive ek
Mr. Andrew D.F. Keith Andrew DF Keith%t & - 1,362 1,232 104 2,698
# An independent non-executive director # BIUERTES
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10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Directors' and chief executive's emoluments (a)
(Continued)

The emoluments of every director and the chief

executive for the year ended 31 March 2017 are set

out below:

10 EBREREBABNRKERE)

ESRTHARME (E)

BE-_O—+E=ZA=1+—"HIFERNZE
ERITHRBENMESFHRNT

Discretionary

Salaries, bonuses
allowances and/or Pension
and benefits  performance- scheme 2017
Name Fee inkind  related bonuses  contributions Total
RN,/
g 28 KikEE N ZO0—tF
i ik RENEF e MEAL RS ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BRI BT BETIT BRI
Director =
Mr. Antonio Chan? REZELE 55 - - - 55
Mr. Lo Kai Kin* BB gL 45 - - - 45
Mr. Ng Tze Yuen* REERE & 45 - - - 45
Chief executive THAR
Mr. Andrew D.F. Keith Andrew DF. Keith% 4 - 1362 520 104 1986

# An independent non-executive director

Except for the directors as disclosed above, no other
directors of the Company received any fees or other
emoluments from the Group for the years ended 31
March 2017 and 2018.

Directors’ retirement benefits (b)
During the year, no retirement benefits were paid

to or receivable by the Directors in respect of

their services as Directors of the Company and its

subsidiaries or other services in connection with

the management of the affairs of the Company or

its subsidiary undertaking through defined benefit

pension plans (2017: Nib.

Directors’ termination benefits (c)
During the year, no payments or benefits in respect

of termination of Directors’ services were paid or

made, directly or indirectly, to the Directors; nor are

any payable (2017: Nil.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

10 DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

10

ESNeREBRASRERER(E)

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making (d) WMERUHEZEREMAETE=EHNRE
available Directors' services
During the year, no consideration was provided to FRRARERBEEREMGETE=EN
or receivable by third parties for making available RE(ZO—CF : ) -

Directors’ services (2017: Nil.

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other () BRMEE  SZHNWEIABBREZSE
dealings in favor of Directors, controlled bodies EEREZERFHNERRELER - I
corporate by and connected entities with such RERZEATHHEHAEIZHER
Directors
During the year, there are no loans. quasi-loans FRNLRERESE  IRFEFEHHEAER
or other dealings in favor of the Directors, their BRrEEEsTRIERNNERMEUEN
controlled body corporates and connected entities NRERZEATHEMZ S (ZO—LF -
(2017: Nib). &) -

(f) Directors' material interests in transactions, (H EBERS ZHERGYTAENANEED
arrangements or contracts ENFIERARF
Except for those disclosed in Note 27 to the MEMERE Z M7 EEIN - REXR
consolidated financial statements, no significant SFENEMERE - BERRR AT AR
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation NRESHEESIHAEREFEEEREEN
to the Group's business to which the Group was a BRAEEERZERARS T a#(=
party and in which a Director of the Company had O—+%F - &) -

a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year (2017: Nil.

(9) Five highest paid employees (9) EEREFMES
The five employees whose emoluments were the FARLEGER TN EEYEEE(ZO
highest in the Group for the year include no directors —tF E) HBM&FBEEN LT
(2017: Nil). details of whose emoluments are set out 0@ AZ(ZO—+F : AR)&oFbE
in Note 10(a) above. Emoluments payable to the 5 BMenT
(2017: 5) highest paid employees during the year are
as follows:

2018 2017

—O—N\#& ZO—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BB

Salaries. allowances and benefits in kind e EUREYERN 9,754 9.442
Discretionary bonuses and/or FEME M KRR LS

performance-related bonuses M E KIAEAT 3,142 1428

Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHR 474 474

13,370 11,344
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE IR ME
10 DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 10 EERSHEBAENZRER(E)
(Continued)
(9) Five highest paid employees (Continued) (90 EEB=HMES(E)
The emoluments of the highest paid employees fell EayES <SRBT
within the following bands:
Number of employees
EEAH
2018 2017
—O—N\E —O—t%F
Bands &5l
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1.500,0017# 7T 2 2,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £ 2,500,000/ 7T 1 3
HK$2,500.001 to HK$3.000,000 2,500,001 7T 2 3,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$3.000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T & 3,500,000/ 7T 2 -
5 5
(h) The chief executive remuneration by band (h TERHEBZHMS&5
The emoluments fell within the following bands: &R RILAT
Number of individual
EEAH
2018 2017
—O—N\#& ZO—+kF
Bands &
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 2 2,000,000/8 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £ 2,500.000/8 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3.000,000 2,500,001/ 75 2 3,000,000/ 7T 1 -
1 1
11 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 1 FSHUER) B
Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided for as the RSB BT ERTAE - FEE—O—N\
Group has no estimated assessable profit for the year FA=T—HALFENERESNEBIEL EM
ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nib. BEB(—O—tF: ®)-
No provision for overseas profits tax has been made as A AN BN TR INEF - EwrEst
the Group has no estimated overseas assessable profit TEINFUSTUEH I BE(ZO—+45F : &) -

(2017: Nib.
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INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued)

(@)

(o)

JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

11 FEBL(ER) ER(E)

The amount of taxation (credited)/charged to the @ RErakEER(ESR),  HBROTIBESEA
consolidated income statement represents:
2018 2017
—O—N\&F ZO—t#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong profits tax HEAENER
- Current income tax — RERFFIS R - -
- Overprovision in prior years — AT FEREN S (13) (455)
Deferred income tax (Note 25) RIEFTS B (F3E25) (653) 1.947
(666) 1492
The taxation on the Group's loss before income tax (o) AEEHHERNAIEER HEERARER

differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

BB EM B 2w Z88IT

using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as follows:

2018 2017

—O—N\F —O—+*%

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEET T BET T

Loss before income tax BB AT EIE (55,391) (40,362)

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%)
Effect of different taxation rate in other

R16 5% T E 2518
(ZO—+t%F :165%) (9,139) (6,660)
Hib A ER AR R 2 &

jurisdictions 45 (316)
Effect of share of (profit)/loss of IE =) —YNG|

an associate (BF),/ BlEzZE (513) 250
Expenses not deductible for TAIHHE 2 T

taxation purpose 773 557
Income not subject to tax AR WA (381) (1.845)
Effect of tax losses and temporary RIERIE R EE K&

difference not recognised RERECRE 8,562 9.961
Over-provision in prior years NAFERENRE (13) (455)
Income tax (credit)/expense Fris®i(E®), B (666) 1,492
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

DIVIDENDS
No dividends were paid during the year ended 31 March
2018 and 2017.

12

BE
BE2-O—\FR-_O—+F=A=1+—HEFEI
BRI R BIREERR B -

2018 2017

—O—N\&F ZO—t#F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

No interim dividend proposed (2017: Nil) PREBRFEFHRE(ZO—+F : &) - -
No final dividend proposed (2017: Nil) PEFRRERARE(ZO—+F : &) - -

The Board has resolved not to declare any dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year
of HK$54,725,000 (2017: loss of HK$41,.854,000) and

the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,624,000,000 (2017: 1,624,000,000) shares in issue during
the year.

Diluted loss per share was equal to basic loss per share as
there was no dilutive potential share outstanding for each
of the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

13
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE IR ME
14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 9% BRERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEWE B £8
£ k& RE fam
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BETT
Year ended 31 March 2017 “O—+t&=ZA=+-H
Opening net book value HRREHE 33.936 16,391 - 50327
Additions AE 28723 12,363 - 41086
Disposals/write-off HE/HH (1.428) (606) - (2.034)
Depreciation (Note 7) HrE(ME7) (19.042) (6.585) - (25.627)
Impairment charge (Note 7) AEME7) (2.056) (33) - (2.089)
Exchange differences b5 =58 (289) (69) - (358)
Closing net book value H R EE 39,844 21461 - 61,305
At 31 March 2017 —ZO—+F=A=1—H
Cost B% 173533 109.160 1220 283913
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  E:H& HRE (133.689) (87.699) (1.220) (222,608)
Net book value EmFE 39,844 21461 - 61,305
Year ended 31 March 2018 —O—-\#=ZA=1+-H
Opening net book value BRI FE 39,844 21461 - 61,305
Additions RE 5250 3,684 - 8.934
Depreciation (Note 7) & fET7) (15.628) (6.039) - (21.667)
Impairment charge (Note 7) REFE7) (2.542) (724) - (3.266)
Exchange differences B 5 24 348 83 - 431
Closing net book value MR AR SHE 27272 18,465 - 45,737
At 31 March 2018 —O0—-\F=A=1—H
Cost AR 172160 106.264 1220 279,644
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  £5H7& KR{E (144,888) (87.799) (1.220) (233.907)
Net book value REHFE 27272 18.465 - 45737

Depreciation expenses of approximately HK$19,524,000
(2017: HK$21,520,000) has been charged in "direct

costs and operating expenses” and HK$2,143,000 (2017:
HK$4,107,000) in ‘administration expenses” respectively.

FEBRHEPBEE19524000T(—0O—HF :
#2152000070) EI EEXK AR EEER R X
- 21430007 (= O—+ 4 : 4107,0007T)
BIETAlTTERE A |5 -
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMEHRRMT

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS 15 & -BEIBEAREMEE
2018 2017
—O—N\#E —O—+%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BEETTT
Deposits Hia 73,111 89,948
Prepayments TENE A 3,478 2,298
Other assets Hin&EE - 101
76,589 92,347
Less: Current portion AN EREL S (17,787) (27.425)
Non-current portion KHIE D 58,802 64,922

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other
assets approximate their fair values.

Fle REMEE 2 REERE QN HEABAERN -

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 EBFkEMEWERE
2018 2017
—O—N\E —O—+%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT IT
Trade receivables Z 5 ERIE 42,585 18,747
Other receivables H b U AR IA 1,447 4,373
44,032 23120

RZO—N\F=A=+—HWNEZHKHMEKIREA
WATBE RN RN E 5 RERERIEHE A 01T

Included in trade and other receivables are trade
receivables with an ageing analysis based on invoice date

at 31 March 2018 as follows:

Fltan T

2018 2017

—O—N\F ZO—t#F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Within 30 days =t+HA 41,387 18,234
Between 31 to 60 days =+—BEX+AH 961 83
Between 61 to 90 days AtT—BEATA 76 249
Over 90 days N+BRE 161 181
42,585 18,747
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

B R HEMRKIRE(E)
AEERRYARBENREEIA THIEE BB

2018 2017
—O—N\& —O—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ok e
Hong Kong dollars BIT 38,082 13.485
Others H 4,503 5262
42,585 18.747
The Group has established credit policies and the general REEBMENEERR  —RATNERAAS

credit terms allowed range from O to 60 days.

As at 31 March 2018, trade receivables of HK$42,585,000
(2017: HK$18,747,000) were fully performing. At 31 March
2018, trade receivables of HK$237,000 (2017: HK$430,000)
were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number
of independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade
receivables is as follows:

EXRTBEAE -

RZO—NE=ZA=+—"H BH5EURFEE
4258500070( —O—+4F : E#18747.000) & #e
W@ RZO—NFE=ZA=+—8  BSEWKX
B 237.000( —O—+4F 1 B¥E430,000) & E 8
HEWERE - WERIBEFRZEAKDIEHIE
HEENBEYRF o WEE S RUGRIERER ST a0
T

2018 2017

—O—-N#& —O—+%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Between 61 to 90 days AT—BZEATA 76 249
Over 90 days N+BMRE 161 181
237 430

Trade and other receivables do not contain impaired
assets and the maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
receivable mentioned above. The Group does not hold
any collateral as security.

Included in trade and other receivables is HK$22,573,000
(2017: HK$5.,462,000) being amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries. The amounts are unsecured, interest free and
repayable in accordance to the Group's established credit
policies.

B o5 MNEMEUKRRANRBEREEREERE - £
A FERBRNESERAES L SHERK
FRIBNVARME(E - ARBE TS A EERE M EM

on °

BIEEE S REWRESMEE 225730007 (=0
—+ 4 BH5462,0007T) T B FER ZH B A A
FRIBE o ZFETYERE - R ERIEAEERENE
EBRER »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A VBRI
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 17 REEQRNER
2018 2017
—O—N\#F —O—t#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
At beginning of the year REH] 7,290 8.797
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate FribEs e N m &R, (Ei8) 3,111 (1.514)
Exchange differences MEH =% 71 7
At end of the year RER 10,472 7.290
At 31 March 2018, the particulars of the associate are as RZO—N\F=ZA=+—H BERRHNERDN
follows: N
Place of Percentage of Issued and fully paid
Name of associate incorporation equity holding  share capital Principal activities
BEARER SE B S 3 5 s EBRTRAERRE FEXK
Marni (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 49%  HK$100,000 divided into  Designer fashion
& 100 ordinary shares retailing
75 #100,0007T5 TERERE
AH100% & 38 Ak
Set out below is the summarised financial information Bt AR EMBERNT - b RARAEREA
for the associate which is accounted for using the equity R o
method.
Summarised statement of financial position REFBMRRR
2018 2017
—O—N\& ZO—t#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Current assets MENEE 52,420 43,323
Current liabilities mBEIE (34,665) (34,204)
Non-current assets EMBNEE 3,616 5759
Net assets BEFE 21,371 14,878
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBmERMET
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 17 REZEQTNER(E)
Summarised income statement BERRR
2018 2017
—O—N\&E —O—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Income Weas 95,367 102,891
Expense X H (89,018) (104,993)
Gain/(loss) before income tax BREATEF](EE) 6,349 (2,102)
Income tax expense FriSii & A - (988)
Profit/(loss) after income tax BRER&TF,(EE) 6,349 (3.090)
Proportionate interest in an associate's R DI FE(R R & N R S T E AT
operating lease commitments 9,227 9,922
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information HEFFER N E QR M ERIRAE 2 HIR
presented to the carrying amount of its interest in an
associate.
2018 2017
—O—N\#E —O—+t%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Net assets BERE 21,371 14,878
Interest in an associate (49%) FRB A Bl )RR (49% ) 10,472 7.290
As at the date of statement of financial position, there are HEVBRARNEER - Kﬁlﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁz% EWN
no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest Rz LB REMFIAAE  MazEHE AR

AEMEEAHARE -

in its associate, and no contingent liabilities of the entity
itself.

AN YNC]
HERHE(E R QA FEABUIRN -

Amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free,
and repayable on demand. The carrying amount of the
balance approximates its fair value.
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBmERMET
FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 18 RATVEEBEZLENERMEE
LOSS
The financial asset at fair value through profit or ?E’&EFTELZETEE&EEEEE’JE\EEE%ETE%Fﬁﬁﬁ
loss represented the net fair value of the call and BEEE N R B D 20T Uikl 2 R KRG EIE R

19

put options of the Group's 49% equity interest in an FEFE ° E%HH%E’J%TEEEA,%WE% S E R
associate. Valuations of these options were performed EUgHTE E G ER AR A BEH FHE o
by an independent professional qualified valuer, Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited.
2018 2017
—O—N\#E —O—t#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
At beginning of the year ] 4,846 5760
Fair value loss on financial asset at BEATEEBERCENSMEE
fair value through profit or loss (Note 8) Z A FEEE(KIEES) (3,615) (914)
At end of the year RER 1,231 4,846
FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 19 fTEEREE(8F)
2018 2017
—O—N\&F ZO—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Assets BE
Forward foreign exchange contracts SNEEIES A 3,081 -
2018 2017
—O—N\#F ZO—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB
Liabilities affE
Forward foreign exchange contracts HNEHAE S 49 984 -
Less: Current portion W ANEREL S (565) -
Non-current portion REAEL S 419 -
As at 31 March 2018, derivative financial instruments 75A O—N\F=A=+—H {T4A&mIAFER

mainly represented foreign exchange forward contracts

and the amounts are denominated in Euro.

The notional principal amount of the outstanding

foreign exchange forward contract at 31 March 2018 is
EUR19.615,000 (2017: Nil. This foreign exchange forward
contract is held for trading and is expected to mature

within 15 months (2017:Nil).
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMEHRRMT

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BEeRBELEEEE
2018 2017
—O—N\&§ —O—+*%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT IT
Cash at bank and in hand RITMEFRS 220,899 204,915
Short-term bank deposits SECEERYER N 119,935 119,027
340,834 323,942

RRITERNERMNE/SFFIIE(ZO—+
F06E)  IFEFROFHEHAKBIOKR(=O
—+%F : 50K) - ARBEMRITHEFRESIA TS

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 1.3% (2017: 0.6%) per annum; these deposits have
average maturities of 90 days (2017: 59 days). The Group's

21

cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the

following currencies:

B RN

2018 2017
—O—N\#§E —O—+%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Hong Kong dollars BIT 107,606 144,161
United States dollars ETT 155,686 154,793
Renminbi AR 67,385 18.641
Others H 10,157 6.347
340,834 323,942

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 21 HibFEERIERESTIER
2018 2017
—O—N\#E —O—t%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Provision for staff salaries and bonus B T SR E4T B4 30,436 6.202
Provision for reinstatement costs E Ny 18,013 17.718
Unamortised rental incentive R ESER 17,902 14,371
Customer deposits BPEFH 14,504 13.626
Provision for long service payment REHRB S 2 B#iE 7.922 6.869
Other tax payables H At e TRIE 9,681 9.825
Provision for onerous contract EEME A B - 17,050
Others HAmh 41,237 33,554
139,695 119,215
Less: Current portion B NERES S (131,773) (112,346)
Non-current portion RHEIE S 7,922 6.869
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JOYCE

A BEmRMEE

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Continued) 21
The carrying amounts of the Group's other payables and

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HAFE AR R EET IR E ()

7 S5 8 ) LA A R TR N B R TIR B RO RBREI(EIA T 7))

accruals are denominated in the following currencies: B AN
2018 2017
—O—N\F ZO—t#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB T T
Hong Kong dollars BIT 112,487 76.686
Renminbi ARE 26,180 41,232
Others HAmh 1,028 1,297
139,695 119,215

Included in other payables and accruals is HK$9.885,000
(2017: HK$4,574,000) being amounts due to related parties.
The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable
in accordance to the Group's established credit policies.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

22

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables at 31

March 2018 based on due date is as follows:

BEEEMENEEREFTEERE P BE
9,8850007t( —O—+4F : B#45740007T) 18
FEHEEE A LFRIE - ZFCRVERE - 2B NMIEAR

SERLEMEEBORIER -

ENEZRERENRE

RZO—NF=A=1+—HHENBSRAKRER
ZEHREREZ A DWHMMNT -

2018 2017

—O—N#& —O—+%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Due within 30 days =+ HREIH 54,295 51,546
Due between 31 to 60 days =+—HZEXTHEIH 1,397 1.894
Due between 61 to 90 days ANt—BEATRAEIE 722 -
56,414 53,440

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and bills

AEBENE ZREALENRIERNEREEL T

payables are denominated in the following currencies: E¥REN
2018 2017
—O—N\#&F ZO—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BB
Euro dollars BT 24,445 23.630
United States dollars e 15,912 17.330
Hong Kong dollars BIT 9,485 6.849
Japanese yen HJt 2,728 2.881
Others Hith 3,844 2.750
56,414 53,440
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE IR ME
SHARE CAPITAL 23 R
Number
of shares HK$'000
RBEE BET T
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREEBBI0TL Y LB
At beginning and end of the year EEEISEEES 3,000,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREEBBI0TL LB
At beginning and end of the year WEEENSEEES 1,624,000,000 162,400
RESERVES 24 k&

The reserves as at 31 March 2018 are analysed as follows:

RZO—NF=A=t—BZRBEITWT :

Exchange
Share Capital Contributed fluctuation Retained

premium surplus surplus reserve eamings Total

Rinag BARH SARS  ENRDERE ZiEEH ke

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS000

BETR AR AR AR AR AR

AtTApril 2016 Z0-~ERA-AER 3728 76 139196 8567 258,780 410347

Loss attibutable to owners of the Company ~ ARRRELEE - - - - (41.854) (41.854)
Net translation differences on foreign operations  B4MEE 7 [E 324 -

- Subsiclaries il A - - - 1643 - (1643

- Associate N - - - 7 - 7

At 31 March 2017 Z0-tEZA=T-HER 3728 76 13919 6931 216926 366857

At1April 2017 Z0-t45mA-RER 3728 76 139,196 6,931 216,926 366,857

Loss attributable to owners of the Company ~ ATIREEEEE - - - - (54,725) (54,725)
Net translation differences on foreign operations  BJME B2 E 3= -

- Subsiclaries -MEAR - - - 8,827 - 8827

- Associate ~BEnT - - - ! - !

At 31 March 2018 Z0-\E=A=+-RER 3728 76 139,196 15,829 162,201 321,030

The Group's contributed surplus represents the excess
of the nominal value of the subsidiaries’ shares acquired
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued

in exchange therefor during the group reorganisation

in 1990. The Company's contributed surplus represents
the excess of the fair value of the subsidiaries’ shares
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 1990
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in

exchange therefor.

REEZHABBKBER - NNOFEREEMARFR
A M B R A] 2 B EERE A R FTEITIAMER
BZBMHEEZERE ARAZBABRKEER
—NNOFEEEARKEBHMB AR 2 AR EBL
ARBABITAMER M Z BNEEZ S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBmERMET
DEFERRED INCOME TAX 25 IEIEFREH
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary RIEFBHABEEANEYREZEASREATE
differences under the liability method at the rates FHE o
applicable in the respective jurisdictions.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when EBETEANITHENBREMBEEERRENBEE
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax BRI - BRIERSHS KR — 1R - BIRT A&
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred BIEFTSTHEER B EEEEH -
income taxes relate to the same tax authority.
2018 2017
—O—N\E —O—+*%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Deferred income tax assets RIEFFSTHEE
Deferred income tax assets to be tEiE12{E A E e RE ST A E
recovered after more than 12 months 6,603 7161
2018 2017
—O—N\#F —O—+t%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BB
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEMEHAE
Deferred income tax liabilities to be FBiE12E A BEENRLEMEHAE
settled after more than 12 months - (1,211
2018 2017
—O—N\E —O—+t%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSHIEE
At beginning of the year ] 5,950 7.897
Credited/(charged) to consolidated RErE e RE R (F0k)
income statement (Note 11) (P 5E11) 653 (1.947)
At end of the year RER 6,603 5,950

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018
- 126 -



25

JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A VBRI
DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 25 EEFREHR(E)
The gross movements in deferred income tax assets and RIEFTISTHEE R B EEEEANAZESHNOT
liabilities accounts before offsetting are as follows.
Deferred tax assets: RIEFGTIEE -
Tax
depreciation Tax losses Others Total
BIRTE BREE Hity b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETR BETRT BETT
At 31 March 2016 ZO—~"E=A=+—H 1.630 7587 16 9.233
Charged to other REre &Mk
comprehensive income (438) (1.610) (7) (2,056)
At 31 March 2017 ZO—+t&=A=+—H 1192 5976 9 7177
(Charged)/credited to RiraliEs
the consolidated income statement (%), e (9D (490) 7 (574)
At 31 March 2018 —O—N\F=ZA=+—H 1101 5486 16 6.603
Deferred tax liabilities: BRIEFSHARE -

Tax depreciation

BIRTE
2018 2017
—O—N\#F ZO—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB
At beginning of the year ) (1,227) (1.336)
Credited to the consolidated income statement iAW RIER 1,227 109
At end of the year RER - 1.227)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.

The Group has temporary difference of HK$2,790,000
(2017: HK$6,738,000) and potential unrecognised tax
losses of HK$295,299,000 (2017: HK$226,719,000) to
carry forward against future taxable income, of which
HK$134,531,000 (2017: HK$114,352,000) will expire within 5
years. There is no expiry period for other tax losses.

EREFTSREEARBEANEH S AR S EBR
PR e RR B M| IR M pL AT 46 88 2 B B 1R AFRERR o

AEFABEK2700000T (=0 —+4F : B
6,738,000 7T ) B 52 & B = M & 8 205,299,000 7T
(ZO—+4%F : #B#226,719,0007T ) B E I R FER
FRIS 18 Al A LUK S R SRIERR TR UG A E R A8k
B 5134 53100070 ( — O —+ 4 : ##114,352,000
TO)HBEEEENAEFTRER - EARIEEET
HHARR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE IR ME
26 COMMITMENTS 26 TRiIE
(a) Operating lease commitments - as lessee (a) REHERE-HAHEE
At 31 March 2018, the Group had future aggregate RZO—NF=ZA=+—H  "EBREDT
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable A EE A A ST & T R 2 R R R EAT
operating leases as follows: SABFEWNT ¢
2018 2017
—O—N\#F —O—t#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Land and buildings: T RIEF
Not later than one year F—FN 207,510 219.340
Later than one year and not later FEZEZERFA
than five years 305,317 434,828
512,827 654,168
Payment obligations in respect of operating leases BRBEAWABYNEES N NEEL T
where rentals vary with gross revenue are not STARKRKIEEESL M o
included as future minimum lease payment.
(b) Operating lease commitments - as lessor (b) AEEHEERE - LS
At 31 March 2018, the Group had future aggregate RZO—N\F=ZA=+—8 ' XEBIRET
minimum lease receipts under a non-cancellable AT HEE A A 2 A8 & R M 2 R R R AR & U
operating lease as follows: REBEAT
2018 2017
—O—N\F ZO—t#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Land and buildings: T RAEF
Not later than one year F—FNA 20,995 28,819
Later than one year and not later FCEFERFA
than five years - 14,924
20,995 43,743
Receipts in respect of operating leases where BRFEREE MR A mE LK HER
rentals vary with gross revenue of the lessee are not Mo WABIEERER Z RREAE W REE
included as future minimum lease receipts. B oo
(c) Capital commitments (c) EBEREE
Capital expenditure at the date of statement of R BRARNEE BEDREERNE R
financial position but not yet incurred is as follows: T
2018 2017
—O—N#F ZO—kF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Property, plant and equipment contracted B ELERBHENYE - FE
but not provided for &L - 152
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The immediate holding company of the Group is JoyBo
International Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. The ultimate holding company

of the Group is Wisdom Gateway Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

27

HEBALTHNRS

AEBNEEERAAA JoyBo International
Limited - E/\\E‘%%Jﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁiz o REE
SR AT ABWisdom Gateway |_|m|ted R
) 3= D AV A/NG

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial B?#?/m\ﬁﬁiﬁéﬁiqjﬁﬁﬁﬁx%% C FRAREE2HE
statements, during the year, the Group had the following ZEBEBATHEARRGHMAT -
significant related party transactions:
(a) Transactions with fellow subsidiaries (@) EERRMEBEARNRIS
2018 2017
—O—N\E —O—+t%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Rental expenses and revenue B Xt FRFRMEARFH
commission paid to fellow subsidiaries HELZHRKARE 23,695 30,765
Rental income received from BRI M B A RMES B
fellow subsidiaries 30,791 30,341

Note:

The above related party transactions are carried at terms
mutually agreed between the parties.

PiAE

A LR R 5 —ARE T KRR B R ETTH

(b) Transaction with an associate (b) EEEEEARINRZS
2018 2017
—O—N\EF —O—t#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Management fee received from B UEE A R B AR B A
an associate 1,301 1527
Note: BEE -
The above related party transactions are carried at terms LA FRAEE R S R E A KRR ER BT EITA ©

mutually agreed between the parties.

(c) Key management compensation
Details of disclosure are shown in Note 10.

(c) FEEHEAEMS
BRARECDFHIIRHFE0 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BEmRMEE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 28 ARATZEBEARRE
COMPANY
2018 2017
—O—N\&§F —O—+*F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
st BT T BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries JEiE Y DN NGIE @) - -
Current assets REEE
Deposits. prepayments and Al ENER
other assets LEMEE 25 56
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEUSBH B A Rl IE 414,274 624,703
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEIAE 420 366
414,719 625,125
Total assets BEEME 414,719 625,125
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners DNERRELER
of the Company
Share capital [N 162,400 162,400
Reserves s (b) 251,957 462466
414,357 624,866
LIABILITIES =N
Other payables and accruals Hib e iRE M EsT1E R 362 259
Total liabilities BEHEE 362 259
Total equity and liabilities ExkEERAE 414,719 625125

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 15 June 2018 and

was signed on its behalf.

Stephen T.H. Ng
Chairman

RXE

FE

Paul Y.C. Tsui
Director
EE
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JOYCE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M IRRME

28 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

28  ARRZMBARREGE)

(@) Interests in subsidiaries (@) FHEHIEBARER
The list below gives the principal subsidiaries of TREIARIDNEERR/EAFEXEES
the Group which are in the opinion of the directors, A2 HEKAEEFEETE 2R
principally affect the results and net assets of the RNAIMB AT -
Group.
Proportionheld  Nominal value of issued and
Place of incorporation Place of FrERAEAL  fully paid-up share capital/
Name and kind of legal entity operations  Direct Indirect reglstered capital Erin;ipal activities
NEER Eﬁﬁﬁht&ﬁﬁimaﬁ!ﬁ%ﬂ fEnr  ERRE BEEE DRORERRE/ERER BEE
Joyce Boutique British Virgin Islands, limited Asia 100% - USS$1,500 divided into Investment holding
International Limited liability company _ LD 1500 ordmary shares RERK
ERENEE AREAD 1500% 75 BLS00R B AR
Joyce Boutique Limited  Hong Kong, limited liability Hong Kong - 100% HK$3,677.785 divided into De5| ner fash\on retailing
company 6 1,000 ordmary shares %
BB ﬁ EE R 83677785707 RLOOOK BB
JB Management Limited  Hong Kong. limited liability Hong Kong - 100%  HK$10,000 divided into Provision of management
company i 1,000 ordmary shares services
BB ﬁ EE R AB10000THALOORERR  REEERHE
Joyce Beauty Hong Kong. limited liability Hong Kong - 100%  HK$10,000 divided into Cosmetics retailing
(Hong Kong) Limited company i 10000 ordinary shares ZEMm
SN ﬁ EEE 71000077 £10, 0008 & @K
Joyce Boutique (Hong ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Hong Kong - 100%  HK$2 divided into 2 Designer fashion retailing
Kong) Limited company & ordinary shares & distribution
SN ﬁ EE NG BETH mRER & REHBIERE
HRLHHEEERRA  PRC whol yforeign owned  PRC - 100%  RMB 20,000,000 Designer fashion retailing
eptegé) PEAR AE#20,000,0007C 8 distribution
PEARLNE HEBECE  AAE TEREHBIRE
JB Retail Limited Hong Kong. limited liability Hong Kong - 100%  HK$1,000,000 divided into De5| ner fash\on retailing
company 6 1,000,000 ordinary shares %
SN ﬁ EEE 71%1,000,00072 £1.000.0008
LER
HERF)-ABRAH Macau limited liability company Macau - 100% MOP25000 Desw%ner fashion retailing
2 BREELT 9 RF§125,0007T
JB Assets Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Hong Kong - 100%  HK$10,000 divided into Holder of trademarks
company &b 1000 ordinary shares and domain names
SN ﬁ E; iYN AH10000LHALO0RERR — HABRRES
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) AATZEEEE
Share  Contributed Retained
premium surplus earnings Total
RIDEE BABE 2RE7 aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETR BETT BETR
At 1 April 2016 —O-~"¥EA-R&ER 3728 159,375 300,283 463386
Loss for the year EEFE - - (920) (920)
At 31 March 2017 ZO—t&=A=+—RHER 3728 159,375 299,363 462,466
At 1 April 2017 —O—tE5NA-B&ERE 3728 159,375 299,363 462,466
Loss for the year FEFE - - (210509) (210,509)
At 31 March 2018 “O-\F=A=1-HEF 3728 159,375 88,854 251,957
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AFEHMBERE

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from

AEEBRERNATRFEZEAMEENEELREM
BT ERERRE YO ENELEE 2 HEWT

the audited accounts and reclassified as appropriate, is set out

below.

RESULTS Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

E¥ 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

ZO—-NF —O—tFf —O—R%F —O—&F —O—mF

=A=+-B =A=+—-8 =ZA=+—8B =A=+—-8B =A=1+—8

FEIE FEIE FEIE FEIE FEIE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T BT T BT BT

REVENUE WA 860,701 954,368 1,179,393 1,325,835 1,339,458

OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT &% (gsi8), &R (58,491) (38,839) (78.860) 44,038 72.074

Finance costs BhE R A (11) (9) 12) (14) (28)
Share of profit/ BNl A=Y

(loss) of an associate &R/ (58) 3,111 (1.514) (6.679) 642 1.867
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE BREA(5E), BRI

INCOME TAX (55,391) (40,362) (85,551) 44,666 73,913
Income tax credit/(expense)  FIEHESR,(BH) 666 (1492) 7.536 (11.591) (12.237)
(LOSS)/PROFIT DR R RENL

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS  (E518) /&

OF THE COMPANY (54,725) (41,854) (78.015) 33.075 61,676
Interim dividend o EARR B - - - 32,480 56,840
Final proposed dividend BORERRERE - - - - -
Total dividends st - - - 32480 56,840
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES As at As at As at As at As at
BEHAR 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March 31st March

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

—O—-N\E¥ —O0—+%F —O—~EF —O—F=%F —O—mE

=A=+—-B =A=+—-8 =A=+—-B =A=+—-8B =A=1+—8

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT BT BT T BT

Property, plant and equipment  #1% « fE Mk & 45,737 61,305 50,327 59,472 75157
Deposits, prepayments e BRNER

and other assets NEMEE 58,802 64,922 62,755 65,566 60.325
Interest in an associate B &R AR 10,472 7,290 8,797 16,950 17.417
Financial asset at fair value BRATHEBBIERLR

through profit or loss HERREE 1,231 4,846 5,760 5,012 -
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTEHHEE 6,603 7.161 9,233 9,610 12,488
Current assets RENEE 563,859 561,345 633,953 772337 784,777
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 686,704 706,869 770.825 928,947 950,164
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (8,341) (8,080) (20,.929) (11,339) (9.135)
Current liabilities TEEE (194,933) (169.532) (177.149) (239,775) (232,144)
TOTAL LIABILITIES Hmeg (203,274) (177.612) (198,078) (251,114) (241,279)
NET ASSETS BEEFE 483,430 529,257 572,747 677.833 708,885
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